
Meeting contact Coral Astbury, Democratic and Member Services Officer or email coral.astbury@southribble.gov.uk

 

 
 
Governance Committee 
Tuesday, 24th May, 2022, 6.00 pm 
 
Shield Room, Civic Centre, West Paddock, Leyland, PR25 1DH 
 
Agenda 
  
1 Apologies for absence  
 
2 Declarations of Interest  

 Members are requested to indicate at this stage in the 
proceedings any items on the agenda in which they intend to 
declare an interest. Members are reminded that if the interest 
is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the 
Members’ Code of Conduct) they must leave the room for the 
whole of that item. If the interest is not a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, but is such that a member of the public 
could reasonably regard it as being so significant that it is 
likely that it would prejudice their judgment of the public 
interest (as explained in the Code of Conduct) then they may 
make representations, but then must leave the meeting for 
the remainder of the item. 

 

 
3 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 29 March 2022 of 

Governance Committee 
(Pages 3 - 8) 

 Minutes of the last meeting held Tuesday, 29 March are 
attached to be agreed as a correct record for signing by the 
Chair. 

 

 
4 Audit Progress Report and Sector Update (Pages 9 - 24) 

 Report of the External Auditors attached.  
 
5 External Audit Plan 2021/22 (Pages 25 - 50) 

 Report of the External Auditors attached.  
 
6 Management responses to External Audit Planning 

Enquiries 2021/22 
(Pages 51 - 76) 

 Report of the Director of Finance/Section 151 Officer 
attached. 

 

 
7 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2021-2022 (Pages 77 - 96) 

 Report of the Service Lead (Audit and Risk) attached.  
 

Public Document Pack



8 Review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit 2022 (Pages 97 - 148) 

 Report of the Service Lead (Audit and Risk) attached.  
 
9 Draft Annual Governance Statement (Pages 149 - 170) 

 Report of the Director of Governance/Monitoring Officer 
attached. 

 

 
 
Gary Hall 
Chief Executive 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Governance Committee 
 
The minutes of this meeting will be available on the internet at 
www.southribble.gov.uk 
 
Forthcoming Meetings 
6.00 pm Tuesday, 26 July 2022 - Shield Room, Civic Centre, West Paddock, 
Leyland PR25 1DH 

http://www.southribble.gov.uk/


 
Governance Committee Tuesday 29 March 2022 

 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of 
 

Governance Committee 

Meeting date 
 

Tuesday, 29 March 2022 

Committee members 
present: 
 

Councillors Ian Watkinson (Chair), Colin Sharples (Vice-
Chair), Damian Bretherton, Margaret Smith, Alan Ogilvie, 
Angela Turner and Kath Unsworth 
 

Officers present: Chris Moister (Director of Governance), Dawn Highton 
(Shared Service Lead- Audit & Risk) and Coral Astbury 
(Democratic and Member Services Officer)  
 

Other attendees: 
 

Councillors David Shaw (Virtually), Phil Smith, 
Carol Wooldridge (Virtually) and Mick Titherington (Virtually) 
and Karen Walton (Virtually) 
 

External Auditor: Matt Derrick and Georgia Jones (Grant Thornton PLC) 
 

Public: 0 
 

Adjournment 
 
The Chair adjourned the start of the meeting by 15 minutes, in order to allow time for 
the technical difficulties being experienced to be resolved. 
 
The meeting began at 18:15 without being live streamed as the technical difficulties 
could not be resolved. 
  

38 Apologies for absence 
 
 No apologies were received. 
  

39 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
  

40 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 25 January 2022 of Governance Committee 
 
Members advised that Councillors Paul Foster and Phil Smith were missed off the 
attendance list, it was agreed that this would be updated. 
 
Councillors Margaret Smith and Alan Ogilvie stated that they found the minutes to be 
sparse and it was their view that they did not accurately reflect the meeting. 
 
The Director of Governance responded and explained that the minutes were not 
intended to be a verbatim record of the meeting. The minutes were only supposed to 
capture the main points of discussion and any action points that arose. The Director 
of Governance explained that all public meetings were now live streamed to the 
Council’s YouTube page and recordings kept for anyone who wished to view the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 

 
Governance Committee Tuesday 29 March 2022 

meeting in more detail. It was his view that the minutes of the last meeting were 
sufficient in detail and content.  
 
Councillor Ogilvie explained that he had expressed quite a bit of concern on the 
facilities management report and although there were some mention of it in the 
minutes he did not feel that enough was included. 
 
Resolved: 
 
It was agreed that the minutes would be amended to reflect the change in 
attendance and for some wording to be included to further explain that Members 
requested Internal Audit to undertake a review of compliance with statutory 
responsibilities at other council buildings, with the results to be reported to a later 
meeting.  
 
  

41 Audit Report Update 
 
The Service Lead (Audit and Risk) presented a report which provided an update on 
the progress of the implementation of the outstanding agreed actions from the 
review of Facilities and Building Management (Civic Centre) report. The report also 
provided an update on a review of statutory compliance with Health and Safety 
legislation for all other council buildings (excluding commercial properties), this 
review was undertaken by the Health and Safety Team. 
 
The Service Lead (Audit and Risk) explained that the review of all other council 
buildings had now been completed, with all findings detailed within the report. 
Officers had focused on how a re-occurrence could be prevented and it was 
acknowledged by the Director of Commercial that record management needed 
improving. Current records were being rationalised and strengthened, and in addition 
the Health and Safety Team Leader was now holding monthly meetings with the 
directorate to ensure that inspections were being undertaken and following up on 
any actions in a timely manner. 
 
The Service Lead (Audit and Risk) provided the committee with an update on the 
four outstanding actions from the review of Facilities and Building Management 
(Civic Centre). Two outstanding actions had been completed and two actions 
remained. Of the remaining actions, one would be completed by Friday 1 April 
following the training of additional fire wardens and the final action on improving 
record management with a dedicated ICT system would be completed in September. 
With the procurement of a dedicated ICT system, however compensating controls 
were being put in place until the system is fully operational. 
 
Members asked if all regular testing was now up to date and compliant with the 
buildings insurance terms. In response, the Service Lead (Audit and Risk) advised 
that any gaps in statutory compliance would have been identified and an action plan 
put in place. 
 
Members sought clarification on who undertook the fire assessment and expressed 
concern that an assessment would not be undertaken until June 2022 and asked for 
clarification that the building insurance would still be valid. In response, the Service 
Lead (Audit and Risk) explained that an external assessor would be appointed to 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



3 

 
Governance Committee Tuesday 29 March 2022 

undertake the review. A full assessment had been undertaken in 2020, with a further 
desk top review undertaken in 2021, however a full reassessment was now required. 
 
In response to a member enquiry it was confirmed that the Idox system would not be 
implemented as the record management system as a new dedicated system had 
been procured. 
 
Resolved:  
 
The report be noted.  
 
  

42 Internal Audit Plan April to September 2022 
 
The Service Lead (Audit and Risk) presented a report which set out the programme 
of work to be undertaken by the Internal Audit service for the first six months of 
2022-23. The report sought to remind members of the respective roles of managers 
and Internal Audit to maintain a sound system of governance and internal audit 
control within the council and details of the Internal Audit Plan and associated 
performance indicators. 
 
In addition, the report also sought the committee’s approval of the Audit Plan and 
Internal Audit Charter. 
 
The Service Lead (Audit and Risk) advised that the plan would ordinarily be an 
annual report, however it had become apparent over the past two years that the 
council has to adapt and change quickly. The new approach, of a six month plan, 
had been discussed and approved at Senior Management Team and would not have 
any impact on the assurance that the committee would receive. 
 
The Service Lead (Audit and Risk) explained that Internal Audit would continue to 
produce interim reports and the annual auditor’s opinion in May would cover all 
completed work over the last twelve months. It was her view that a six month plan 
would provide better assurance as the work will have been specifically targeted on 
the risks facing the council at that time, as opposed to predicting what could happen 
in over the course of the year. A six month plan would also allow the Internal Audit 
team to tailor the plan to meet resource available. 
 
Members considered the plan and asked for more information on how resource 
would be managed and expressed concern that Internal Audit would have 
insufficient resource for the second half of the year. In response, the Service Lead 
(Audit and Risk) explained that resource would be mapped at the start of the year 
and would take into consideration annual leave, training and corporate events. A 
productive time figure would be remaining and the report would be tailored to meet 
that level of resource. It was anticipated that there would be at least 137 audit days 
in quarters three and four, if not more.  
 
The Director of Governance explained that the six month plan would provide 
certainty for that particular period. There had been experience previously of Internal 
Audit producing a 12 month report and not being able to deliver it and needing to 
come back before committee to ask for more resource or deferrals. The Director of 
Governance confirmed that the committee would still receive a full 12 month audit 
plan but presented as two six month plans. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



4 

 
Governance Committee Tuesday 29 March 2022 

 
Members asked what factors had contributed to changing the process for the annual 
plan. In response, the Service Lead (Audit and Risk) explained that the past two 
years, in particular COVID had been difficult. Over the last 12 months the Internal 
Audit Team had to give a lot of support to business grants and post assurance work, 
something which could not be foreseen. As a result, the team had to change and 
adapt. It was Officer’s view that a six month plan would make the service more 
flexible, with the risk assessment being re-visited in the summer months to identify 
the work plan for the following six months. 
 
Members noted the Internal Audit Charter had been amended to include the work for 
South Ribble Leisure and asked if the uplift in audit days to South Ribble was due to 
the leisure trust. The Director of Governance confirmed that service level 
agreements were in place with the Council providing services to the leisure company 
and recharging them to reflect the time and cost to the authority. 
 
Members asked if there was a conflict of interest for Internal Audit undertaking the 
audit work for South Ribble Leisure Trust. The Service Lead (Audit and Risk) stated 
that there was not. The Director of Governance added that the audit for the South 
Ribble Leisure trust would be provided to Governance Committee as part of the 
Annual Governance Statement. External audit would be undertaken of the 
companies’ accounts. 
 
The committee agreed to vote separately on the recommendations within the report. 
 
Resolved:  
 
(For: 4 Abstain: 3) 
 
For: Councillors Ian Watkinson (Chair), Colin Sharples, Ange Turner and Kath 
Unsworth. 
 
Abstain: Councillors Damian Bretherton, Alan Ogilvie and Margaret Smith. 
 

1. The committee approve the Internal Audit Plan and associated indicators. 
 
(Unanimously) 
 

2. That the committee approve the Internal Audit Charter. 
  

43 Auditor's Annual Report 
 
This item was delayed in order to make alternative arrangements for the External 
Auditors to attend the meeting remotely. 
 
The committee considered a report of the External Auditor’s which provided an 
assessment of the Council’s value for money arrangements and opinion on the 
financial statement.  
 
The External Auditor advised members that the report was retrospective and 
explained that in the previous report 2 statutory recommendations had been issued 
to the authority, however these had not been renewed. The External Auditors were 
satisfied the Council had made sufficient progress in those areas. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



5 

 
Governance Committee Tuesday 29 March 2022 

 
The External Auditors explained they had found some weaknesses in some of the 
Governance arrangements, but reminded members the report was retrospective and 
was looking at 2021. The council had undertaken a lot of work in order to make 
improvements with just a couple of areas left to bring arrangements up to expected 
requirements. Two recommendations for improvement were issued for financial 
sustainability; refining formal reporting to members on sensitivity analysis and 
scenario planning and providing a clear distinction between controllable and non-
controllable spending in the budgetary information to members.  
 
Members sought clarification on the use of both acceptable and reasonable, in 
response the External Auditor confirmed that the meaning was the same and both 
phrases were used interchanging. Moving forwards the External Auditor would use 
one common phrase. 
 
Members asked if the waiver process had been amended in line with the External 
Auditor’s recommendation, the Director of Governance explained that one 
recommendation had been implemented already with the waiver process amended. 
A waiver form had been introduced and amendments had been made, a new 
contract management system had also been implemented.  
 
Members asked the External Auditor if the Housing Benefit recertification work had 
been completed and the External Auditor confirmed that the claim was certified on 
Friday 25 March. 
 
Resolved: 
 
The committee note the report.  
  

44 Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The Director of Governance presented a report which sought to update members on 
the outcome of a review of the Local Code of Corporate Governance and sought 
approval of the code. 
 
The Director of Governance explained the Council had adopted a local code for a 
number of years as it was best practice, although not required by statute. The code 
is reviewed each year in accordance with CIPFA guidance and members were 
asked to consider the revised document. 
 
The Local Code of Corporate Governance was substantially the same as the 
previous version, however the appendix had now been moved into the body of the 
document for presentational reasons.  
 
Members indicated a preference for tracked changes, in order to locate the changes 
easier. 
 
Resolved (Unanimous) 
 
Members approve the Local Code of Corporate Governance at Appendices A and B. 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



6 

 
Governance Committee Tuesday 29 March 2022 

 
 
 
 
Chair Date 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•P
age 12

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence





P
age 18

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•
•

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 24

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 25

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence





P
age 28

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

Expenditure 
recognition–
Governance issues & 
control environment 

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

16

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

Civica Financials Financial reporting • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

Academy Housing Rents • Streamlined ITGC design assessmentP
age 40

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

19

•
•
•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 
2019)

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

22

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 
information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 
purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 
management

Effective management and oversight of 
requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 
complete data populations

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

23

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

To be reviewed 
as part of the 
2021-22 audit

Cash to bank reconciliation

Our review and testing of the year-end reconciliation of cash balances in the accounting ledger to 
the bank account has identified some deficiencies. 

The reconciliation only includes the Council’s main bank account however, there are other bank 
accounts which should also be reconciled and reviewed at year-end. 

The accounting ledger contains several reconciling items which could not be substantiated with 
supporting evidence. 

We recommended that management should review the cash to bank reconciliation process to 
ensure it covers all applicable cash balances in the account, remove any historic or erroneous 
reconciling items and ensure it is fit for purpose as an effective check on the year-end balance. 

To be reviewed 
as part of the 
2021-22 audit

Accounting for revalued assets

Our review of the fixed asset register identified an formula error in the accounting for assets 
revalued at 31 March. Assets revalued as at the reporting date had a depreciation charge applied 
incorrectly resulting in the overstatement of depreciation and understatement of the net book value 
of assets. This was a material misstatement that has been adjusted in the accounts. 

We recommended that management should review the fixed asset register to ensure the calculation 
of accounting entries for revalued assets is compliant with the financial reporting framework. 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 5



P
age 49

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
Management response to External Audit Planning Enquiries 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. To present to the Governance Committee, as those charged with governance of the 
Council, the management responses provided to the planning enquiries made by the 
External Auditors, Grant Thornton, as part of the 2021/22 statutory accounts. 

 
Recommendations to Governance Committee  

2. The Governance Committee, is asked to review and approve the management 
responses to the auditors inquires, as attached. 

Reasons for recommendations 

3. In line with Auditing Standards, and to support the Audit Planning process, the External 
Auditors need to establish the risk of fraud or error.  
 

4. The Auditors’ questions, together with the answers provided by Management, are detailed 
at Appendix A, and details of estimates / methodology used are outlined at Appendix B. 
 

5. This report is being brought to Governance Committee early this year (was end of July last 
year) to ensure a prompt start, and timely conclusion to the Audit.  

 
Other options considered and rejected 

6. Not applicable.  
 

Corporate priorities 

7.  The report relates to the following corporate priorities:  
 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Finance and 
Section 151 Officer 

 

Governance Committee 

 
Tuesday, 24 May 2022 

Is this report confidential?     No  
 

Is this decision key? No 

An exemplary council Thriving communities 

A fair local economy that works for Good homes, green spaces, healthy 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Background to the report 

8. In line with Auditing Standards, and to support the Audit Planning process, the External 
Auditors need to establish the risk of fraud or error.  

 
Climate change and air quality 
 
9. The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability targets 

of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place. 
 

Equality and diversity 

10. Not applicable  

Risk 

11. The risks identified to the External Auditors, in response to the planning inquiries are 

detailed in the Appendices to the report. 

Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer 

12. As part of their responsibilities in conducting the audit of the statutory accounts, the 
External Auditors are required to seek responses, and request information, on all 
aspects of the Council’s activities as they feel are necessary. The information requested 
as part of their planning inquiries, is in line with this. 

 
Comments of the Monitoring Officer 

13. No comments. 
 

Background documents  

There are no background papers to this report 

Appendices  
Appendix A – External Auditor Planning Enquiries & management Response 2021/22 
 
Appendix B – Estimates used in the production of the 2021/22 Accounts 

 

 

 

Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

everyone places 

Page 52

Agenda Item 6



 

Steve Kenyon (Interim 
Deputy Director of 
Finance) 

steve.kenyon@southribble.gov.uk 01772 
625625 

10th May 
2022 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



South Ribble Borough Council – 2021/22 Audit           APPENDIX A 

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 

GENERAL ENQUIRIES OF MANAGEMENT 

Question Management response 

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues 
that will have a significant impact on the financial 
statements for 2021/22?   

The Council has continued to make Covid Business Grant payments throughout 2021/22 
amounting to £9.6 million – with the final schemes (ARG4 & Omicron Grants) running to 31st 
March 2022. 

Covid 19 has continued to have an impact on Council income e.g. Business Rates / Council Tax 
receipts, and fees & charges. However, this has been a reduced impact compared to 2020/21. 

During 2021/22, the Council set up a wholly owned Leisure company “South Ribble Leisure 
Limited”. This will be included in the Statement of accounts (Group Accounts). 

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies adopted by the Council? 

Have there been any events or transactions that 
may cause you to change or adopt new 
accounting policies? If so, what are they? 

We have considered the accounting policies. There have not been any events or transactions 
that have caused us to change or adapt our accounting policies. 

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, 
including derivatives? If so, please explain 

No  

P
age 55



4. Are you aware of any significant transaction 
outside the normal course of business? If so, 
what are they? 

The council has paid out over £9.6m of business grants as part of the Government’s Covid 
support scheme. This was done using processes / controls implemented in 2020/21. 

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances 
that would lead to impairment of non-current 
assets? If so, what are they? 

Due to Covid and general economic conditions we would expect temporary reductions in some 
of the fixed asset valuations. 

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If 
so, please provide further details 

None 

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss 
contingencies and/or un-asserted claims that 
may affect the financial statements? If so, please 
provide further details 

No 

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide 
details of those solicitors utilised by the Council 
during the year. Please indicate where they are 
working on open litigation or contingencies from 
prior years? 

In terms of accessing external legal support the details are as follows: 

1. DAC Beachcroft – Solicitors – instructed on an employment issue. Those issues lasted a 
couple of years but have now been resolved. 

2. Weightmans – Solicitors – instructed mainly on some property matters but also a 
potential litigation matter 

3. Kings Chambers – barristers – instructed on a number of planning matters. 

9. Have any of the Council's service providers 
reported any items of fraud, non-compliance 
with laws and regulations or uncorrected 

No 

P
age 56



misstatements which would affect the financial 
statements? If so, please provide further details 

10. Can you provide details of other advisors 
consulted during the year and the issue on which 
they were consulted? 

See attached; 

 

11. Have you considered and identified assets for 
which expected credit loss provisions may be 
required under IFRS 9, such as debtors (including 
loans) and investments? If so, please provide 
further details 

None identified 

 

FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT 

1. Has Council assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud? 

How has the process of identifying and 
responding to the risk of fraud been undertaken 
and what are the results of this process?  

How do the Council's risk management processes 
link to financial reporting? 

Yes, and there is no indication that the financial statements have been materially misstated 
due to fraud 

Internal Audit undertake their own proactive fraud detection work and participate fully in the 
National Fraud Initiative.  

Based on its activity, Internal Audit is responsible for reporting significant risk exposures and 
control issues identified to the Governance Committee and to Senior Management Team, 
including fraud risks and governance issues. 

Internal Audit Section will undertake special investigations in cases of suspected fraud or 
irregularity. Financial Procedure Rules and the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 

GT Summary - 
Advisors - SRBC.xlsx

P
age 57



require the Head of Audit to be notified immediately of all discovered or suspected cases of 
fraud, corruption or other financial irregularity. 

Fraud in relation to revenues and benefits is dealt with separately by specific investigation 
officers. 

The s151 Officer has the overall responsibility for assessing the risk of material misstatement 
in the financial statements and is supported by services who provide the appropriate 
evidence for this assessment.  

A review of all corporate risks forms part of the quarterly report to the Leadership Team, of 
which the CFO is a member, identifying risk levels, risk owners and mitigating actions. This is 
reported to Shared Senior Management Team of which the CFO is a member. 

All reports submitted to committees require financial comments from the CFO or qualified 
representative. In addition, a risk section has been added to reports so that authors outline 
the major risks associated with decisions. 

Financial implications of future risks are discussed amongst officers at Senior Management 
Team as well interaction with members at leader’s brief and committee meetings  

2. What have you determined to be the classes of 
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at 
risk to fraud?  

 There is always a risk of error and fraud in relation to Benefits and supplier payments 
however we are confident this is mitigated through quality assurance processes, segregation 
of duties and internal checks within the systems / teams involved. 

An additional level of assurance is provided through the work of Internal Audit. 

There are risks of fraud relating to Covid grants payments made to businesses throughout 
2021/22 however these have been mitigated through clearly defined processes and 
segregation of duties. 

Additional safeguards have been provided through the reconciliation / assurance work 
undertaken in conjunction with BEIS (to date no issues identified). 

P
age 58



3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud, errors or other 
irregularities either within the Council as a whole, 
or within specific departments since 1 April 2021? 
If so, please provide details 

No 

4. As a management team, how do you 
communicate risk issues (including fraud) to 
those charged with governance?                                                                                          

Through the work carried out by internal audit 

Reporting of Corporate Risks to Governance Committee 

Specific fraud would be communicated to the Governance Committee when deemed material 

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If 
so, please provide details 

Do you have any concerns there are areas that 
are at risk of fraud? 

Are there particular locations within the Council 
where fraud is more likely to  occur? 

Risk of applicant fraud in respect of Covid Business Grants; mitigated through robust application 
& validation processes 

As above 

No 

6. What processes do the Council have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of fraud? 

Internal Audit, in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards considers the risk 
of fraud in every review.  

Fraud risks are included on the Council’s dedicated risk management system GRACE and 
categorised as a fraud risk to allow for specific fraud risk monitoring. 

7. How do you assess the overall control 
environment for the Council, including: 

During 21/22, a comprehensive internal audit plan has been delivered for the Council focusing 
on the overall control environment to consider if it is effective.  Where controls are deemed to 
be ineffective or need strengthening, a robust action plan is developed with the risk owner with 
agreed timescales for implementation of mitigating actions. 

P
age 59



• the existence of internal controls, 
including segregation of duties; and 

• the process for reviewing the 
effectiveness the system of internal 
control?   

If internal controls are not in place or not 
effective where are the risk areas and what 
mitigating actions have been taken? 

  

What other controls are in place to help 
prevent, deter or detect fraud? 

  

Are there any areas where there is a potential 
for override of controls or inappropriate 
influence over the financial reporting process 
(for example because of undue pressure to 
achieve financial targets)? If so, please provide 
details 

 

Counter Fraud policies are in place and available on both the intranet and the website.  These 
include: 

  Anti Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Strategy 

  Whistleblowing policy 

  Anti money laundering policy. 

  The Fraud Response plan 

 

 No specific areas for the over ride of controls have been identified during 21/22. 
 

8. Are there any areas where there is potential 
for misreporting? If so, please provide details 

There is adequate separation of duties in place to prevent the potential for misreporting 

P
age 60



9. How does the Council communicate and 
encourage ethical behaviours and business 
processes of it’s staff and contractors?  

How do you encourage staff to report their 
concerns about fraud? 

What concerns are staff expected to report 
about fraud? Have any significant issues been 
reported? If so, please provide details 

The Code of Conduct including ethical standards and behaviours which officers are required to 
comply with. The code is referenced in employee appointment letters and a link is provided in 
the letter to a number of relevant documents including the Code of Conduct, adherence to 
which is a condition of their employment 

The Information Security Policy is also there which states what is acceptable and unacceptable 
in terms of information and using the Council's IT systems. 

Council values that provide an ethical framework are used at recruitment and during staff 
reviews. 

Awareness is raised of probity policies via Core Brief and items on the Intranet. 

Mandatory fraud awareness training has been rolled out to all officers during 2021/22. 

No significant issues have been reported 

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, 
what are considered to be high-risk posts? 

How are the risks relating to these posts 
identified, assessed and managed? 

The recruitment process includes robust measures to ensure all relevant documents are 
obtained and reviewed prior to an offer of employment being made. 

11. Are you aware of any related party 
relationships or transactions that could give rise 
to instances of fraud? If so, please provide 
details 

How do you mitigate the risks associated with 
fraud related to related party relationships and 
transactions? 

No 

Major related party’s risks are monitored and reported separately 

P
age 61



12. What arrangements are in place to report 
fraud issues and risks to the Governance 
Committee?  

How does the Governance Committee exercise 
oversight over management's processes for 
identifying and responding to risks of fraud and 
breaches of internal control? 

What has been the outcome of these 
arrangements so far this year? 

Governance Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan and receive interim reports throughout 
the year.  Reports contain a summary of work undertaken and would include fraud risk and 
issues and breaches of internal control if identified. 

  

There have been no instances of fraud reported to the Governance Committee during 21/22 

 

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing 
potential or complaints by potential whistle 
blowers? If so, what has been your response? 

No 

14. Have any reports been made under the 
Bribery Act? If so, please provide details 

No 

 

IMPACT OF LAW & REGULATIONS 

 

1. How does management gain assurance that 
all relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with? 

It is a requirement for the Monitoring Officer to receive and comment on all council and 
executive decisions. 

  

 

P
age 62



What arrangements does the Council have in 
place to prevent and detect non-compliance 
with laws and regulations? 

Are you aware of any changes to the Council ’s 
regulatory environment that may have a 
significant impact on the Counci’s financial 
statements? 

Internal controls, segregation of duties, and the work of Internal Audit / risk management 
processes outlined previously 

  

  

None 

2. How is the Governance Committee provided 
with assurance that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied with? 

Monitoring Officer (or deputy) attends all Governance Committee meetings 

3. Have there been any instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with 
laws and regulation since 1 April 2021 with an 
on-going impact on the 2021/22 financial 
statements? If so, please provide details 

None 

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or 
claims that would affect the financial 
statements? If so, please provide details 

None 

 5. What arrangements does the Council have in 
place to identify, evaluate and account for 
litigation or claims?  

Litigation or claims may be picked up by legal services or services. Where necessary these will 
be reported to the Leader of the Council through the monitoring officer. Any budget 
implications of such litigations will be reported to Executive Cabinet, either through a separate 
report or through the quarterly budget monitoring report. 

  

The Council has set aside reserves to fund possible future costs of planning appeals. 

P
age 63



6. Have there been any reports from other 
regulatory        bodies, such as HM Revenues and 
Customs, which indicate non-compliance? If so, 
please provide details 

None 

 

RELATED PARTIES 

1. Have there been any changes in the related 
parties including those disclosed in the Council's 
2020/21 financial statements?  

If so please summarise:  

• the nature of the relationship between 
these related parties and the Council 

• whether the Council has entered into or 
plans to enter into any transactions 
with these related parties 

• the type and purpose of these 
transactions  

  

The Shared Service operating model with Chorley Borough Council continued to be rolled out 
through 2021/22, overseen by a joint Committee with representation from both Councils. 

The Council set up a wholly owned Leisure Company – “South Ribble Leisure Ltd” in May 2021. 

2. What controls does the Council have in place 
to identify, account for and disclose related 
party transactions and relationships? 

  

 The Transformation and Partnerships Team send emails to Directors and Service leads to 
refresh the list enabling Finance to identify significant transactions undertaken or budgeted to 
be undertaken 

P
age 64



3. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions and 
arrangements with related parties? 

The Council has sufficient separation of duties and appropriate authorisation limits to ensure 
purchase orders and invoices are paid as required. 

Monthly budget monitoring ensures that the Council will identify any variances to agreed 
payments with related parties. 

4. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions outside of the 
normal course of business? 

Payments cannot be paid outside normal procedure rules including separation of duties 
regarding payments being raised and invoices paid. 

There is no out of hours service. 

 

GOING CONCERN 

1. What processes and controls does 
management have in place to identify events 
and / or conditions which may indicate that the 
statutory services being provided by the Council 
will no longer continue? 

• Development & continuing refresh of Corporate Strategy 

• Individual service and employee plans linked to Corporate Strategy 

• Regular reviews of service and corporate level risk registers 

• In year budget monitoring 

• Medium Term financial planning (Revenue) 

• Capital Strategy 

2.  Are management aware of any factors which 
may mean for the Council that either statutory 
services will no longer be provided or that 
funding for statutory services will be 
discontinued? If so, what are they? 

No – not aware of any factors 

P
age 65



3. With regard to the statutory services 
currently provided by the Council, does the 
Council expect to continue to deliver them for 
the foreseeable future, or will they be delivered 
by related public authorities if there are any 
plans for the Council to cease to exist? 

Yes – direct provision for the foreseeable future 

4. Are management satisfied that the financial 
reporting framework permits the Council to 
prepare its financial statements on a going 
concern basis?  

Are management satisfied that preparing 
financial statements on a going concern basis 
will provide a faithful representation of the 
items in the financial statements? 

Yes – satisfied 

Yes - satisfied 

 

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 

 

1. What are the classes of transactions, events 
and conditions, that are significant to the 
financial statements that give rise to the need 
for, or changes in, accounting estimate and 
related disclosures? 

Pension Valuations 

PPE Valuations 

Material Creditor and Debtor transactions including shared services charges between Councils 

Provision for Business Rates appeals. 

Preparation of Group Accounts 

P
age 66



2. How does the Council's risk management 
process identify and address risks relating to 
accounting estimates? 

This is dealt with within the finance section 

Senior Finance staff keep up-to-date with changes in accounting practises including purchasing 
the Code of Practice, attending relevant CIPFA training sessions and reviewing previous accounts 
to prepare for any changes. 

3. How does management identify the methods, 
assumptions or source data, and the need for 
changes in them, in relation to key accounting 
estimates? 

Use of the CIPFA code of practice for local govt accounts.  Review of source data provided to 
external experts (PP&E, pensions) and comparison of assumptions and results between 
financial years. 

4. How do management review the outcomes of 
previous accounting estimates? 

Comparison of estimates to eventual actual transactions, use this to form future judgements.  
Use these to review and challenge current outcomes of estimates. 

5. Were any changes made to the estimation 
processes in 2021/22 and, if so, what was the 
reason for these? 

No changes made to the processes, however underlying assumptions are reviewed and 
potentially changed. 

6. How does management identify the need for 
and apply specialised skills or knowledge related 
to accounting estimates? 

Review of skills held internally, and outsource identified gaps, using knowledge of reputable 
and appropriate experts. 

7. How does the Council determine what control 
activities are needed for significant accounting 
estimates, including the controls at any service 
providers or management experts?  

Review the underlying assumptions, and where there is material change, analyse to understand 
it and/or challenge the results. 

P
age 67



8. How does management monitor the operation 
of control activities related to accounting 
estimates, including the key controls at any 
service providers or management experts?  

Answered above 

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 
governance over management’s financial 
reporting process relevant to accounting 
estimates, including: 

- Management’s process for making 
significant accounting estimates 

- The methods and models used 

- The resultant accounting estimates 
included in the financial statements. 

Any substantial changes to the statement of accounts that result from changes in accounting 
estimates will be reported to Governance Committee alongside the draft statement.  

10. Are management aware of any transactions, 
events, conditions (or changes in these) that 
may give rise to recognition or disclosure of 
significant accounting estimates that require 
significant judgement (other than those in 
Appendix A)? If so, what are they? 

No 

11. Why are management satisfied that their 
arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 
detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable? 

Yes 

P
age 68



12. How is the Governance Committee provided 
with assurance that the arrangements for 
accounting estimates are adequate ? 

  

Any substantial changes to the statement of accounts that result from changes in accounting 
estimates will be reported to Governance Committee alongside the draft statement.  

 

 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Ribble Borough Council – 2021/22 Audit           APPENDIX B   

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES              

Estimate 

(Please 
add/remove 
estimates as 
appropriate) 

Method / model used to 
make the estimate 

Controls used to 
identify estimates 

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert 

Underlying assumptions: 

- Assessment of degree of 
uncertainty 

 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates 

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting 
method in 
year? 

Land and 
buildings 
valuations 

RICS approved valuation 
methodologies 

Use of external RICS 
qualified auditors 

  

Yes – External 
Valuers and 
in-house RICS 
qualified 
employees 

Variances to be checked with in-
house team and where necessary 
alternative valuers will be used to 
challenge any variances 

No 

Depreciation The approach is outlined in 
the statement of accounts 
utilizing Code of Practice 
and up to date CIPFA 
Capital Accounting 
guidance 

Analysis of 
impairments, 
acquisitions and 
disposals included in 
the closure of 
accounts procedures 

Yes – External 
Valuers and 
in-house RICS 
qualified 
employees 

No other alternatives have been 
considered for 21/22 

No 

Level 3 
investments – 
Investment in 
Joint Ventures 

The Council does not have 
any investments of this 
nature. 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

P
age 71



Deferred 
income 

Standard schedules based 
on lease agreements. 

(Please note that total 
amount is just £39k.) 

Assessment of 
amount of 
outstanding lease 
payments 

No. Process 
complies with 
standard 
practice for 
producing 
such 
estimates. 

Model used follows requirements of 
accounting standards and Code. 
There are no alternative 
methodologies available. 

No 

Provisions 

(Bad Debts) 

For Sundry Debts, for 
significant areas, 
assessment has been 
made at a detailed level. 
For more general debt, a 
percentage provision has 
been applied. For HB 
overpayments, provision is 
based on a percentage 
dependent on the age of 
the debt. The levels of 
provision for this type of 
debt have been reviewed 
for 2021/22. CTax and 
Business Rates debt 
(including Costs) is again 
based on age bandings 
and percentages. All 
percentage bandings have 
been reviewed for 
2021/22 in view of the 
impacts of the Covid 19 

Estimates are derived 
by reference to the 
available relevant 
data and in 
accordance with 
professional 
standards and 
guidance. 

No. Process is 
internal only. All 
staff involved 
are trained and 
experienced to 
sufficient degree 
both to fully 
understand the 
process and its 
significance and 
to apply it in 
practice. 

There is an inherent element of 
estimation uncertainty and this has 
inevitably been increased by the 
circumstances of the pandemic. 
Every effort has been made to limit 
this increase, by close reference to 
all available data.  

Base 
methodology 
remains 
unchanged for 
2021/22. P

age 72



pandemic and, where 
judged appropriate, varied 
compared to previous 
years. 

Provisions 

(NNDR) 

For pre-2017 List appeals, 
a calculation is carried out 
based on levels of 
outstanding appeals, the 
grounds of the appeals 
and past experience of 
success rates and levels of 
reductions in RV. For the 
2017 List, provision is 
based on an estimated 
percentage, derived with 
reference to comparator 
councils, adjusted for 
changes made at the 
‘Check’ and ‘Challenge’ 
stages. 

Estimates are derived 
by reference to the 
available relevant 
data, comparators, 
etc and in 
accordance with 
professional 
standards and 
guidance. 

Estimate has 
been produced 
in-house. LG 
Futures have 
been retained to 
review and 
advise on its 
appropriateness. 

A degree of estimation uncertainty 
is inherent even with the pre-2017 
List, because although it is based on 
objective data and an established 
methodology, there is always the 
possibility of variation from 
previous percentage success rates 
and RV reduction. The uncertainty 
is higher in respect of the 2017 List, 
where there is very little objective 
evidence on which to assess the 
likely ultimate level of successful 
appeals. The percentage applied is 
judged to be within the range of 
likely outcomes, but towards the 
higher end of that range. 
Consideration has been given to 
applying a lower percentage, but 
this would expose the Council to 
the risk of future loss without the 
provision to cover it, with the 
possibility that this could be for a 
significant amount. 

Only change 
compared to 
previous year 
is that a 
certain 
amount of 
information is 
now available 
in respect of 
numbers and 
status of 2017 
List cases at 
the ‘Check’ 
and 
‘Challenge’ 
stages and this 
has been 
incorporated 

P
age 73



Accruals Estimates are based on 
hard data, eg values of 
orders placed, actual 
invoiced/remitted 
amounts paid /received in 
first month of succeeding 
financial year, values 
produced by completion 
final returns and grant 
claims. 

Accruals are raised 
only where there is 
objective evidence of 
expenditure/income 
which is required to 
be recognized in the 
financial year. 

No. Process is 
internal only. All 
staff involved 
are trained and 
experienced to 
sufficient degree 
both to fully 
understand the 
process and its 
significance and 
to apply it in 
practice. 

Robust nature of base data and 
relatively mechanistic nature of 
process mean that there is only a 
very limited degree of uncertainty, 
eg an invoiced amount may vary 
slightly from an order value, a 
subsequent amendment might be 
made to a return on which a grant 
claim was based, but it will be rare 
for these to produce any significant 
variation. 

No.  

Credit loss and 
impairment 
allowances 

The only estimate of this 
type made by the Council 
is that for non-
recoverability of Short 
Term Debtors. Detail in 
respect of this has been 
provided under the 
heading of Provisions (Bad 
Debts) above 

See under Provisions 
(Bad Debts) above 

See under 
Provisions (Bad 
Debts) above. 

See under Provisions (Bad Debts) 
above 

See under 
Provisions 
(Bad Debts) 
above 

Finance lease 
liabilities 

The Council does not hold 
any assets under finance 
leases. 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

P
age 74



      

Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision 
(MRP) 

Full Council (23rd February 
2022) approved the 
2022/23 Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

This included a revised 
approach to the 
calculation of MRP. 

The Council 
calculates MRP on 
pre-2008 debt on a 
“reducing balance” 
basis. 

This has now been 
changed to an “equal 
annual instalments”; 
ensuring the debt is 
fully recovered. 

For debt post-2008, 
the Council has 
adopted an “equal 
instalments” 
approach over the 
life of an asset. 

The revised 
methodology uses 
the annuity method 
for all post 2008 debt 
to ensure a 
consistent and 
equitable approach. 

Discussions with 
Link Treasury 
Advisers 

The methodology is applied to 
actual external borrowing – in the 
year after borrowing took place; in 
line with guidance. 

2021/22 – No 

2022/23 - Yes 

P
age 75



These changes will be 
applied in the 
2022/23 accounts. 

 

P
age 76



 

 
 

 

Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2021-2022 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the work undertaken by the Internal Audit 
Service during 2021/2022 and to give an opinion as required by the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS) on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control.  

 

2. The report also includes the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme. 
 

 
Recommendations to Governance Committee  

3. That the Committee is asked to note the report for the year ended 31.3.2022.  
 
Reasons for recommendations 

4.  The completion of an Annual Audit Report and Opinion is a requirement of the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

 
Other options considered and rejected 

5. None.  
 
 

Corporate priorities 

6.  The report relates to the following corporate priorities: (please bold all those applicable): 
 

Is this report confidential? No  
 

Report of Meeting Date 

Service Lead Audit and 
Risk 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Tuesday, 24 May 2022 

An exemplary council Thriving communities 

A fair local economy that works for everyone Good homes, green spaces, healthy places 

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Background to the report 

7. The Service Lead Audit and Risk is responsible for the delivery of an Annual Internal Audit 
Report and Opinion that can be used by the council to inform its Annual Governance 
Statement.    
 

8. The attached report complies with the requirements of the PSIAS. It includes details of the 
coverage of work undertaken and a summary of the work that has been carried out that 
supports the opinion.   

 

9. It also states whether the work has been undertaken in conformance with PSIAS, the 
results of any Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP), summary of actual 
performance against targets/measures and any issues that are considered relevant to the 
preparation of the AGS. 

 

Climate change and air quality 

10. The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability 
targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place. 

 

Equality and diversity 

11. The material presented and discussed in this report has no direct implications on equality 
and diversity.   

Risk 

12. The primary role of the Audit and Risk Service is to provide assurance or otherwise that 
the council is effectively managing its risk and to provide support to all Directorates in 
relation to risk and control. 

Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer 

13. No comments. 
 

Comments of the Monitoring Officer 

14. No comments.   
 

There are no background papers to this report 

Appendices  
Appendix A – Internal Audit Annual report and opinion 2021- 2022 
Appendix B – Summary of Work undertaken 2021-22 

Appendix c – Performance Indicators 2021-22 

. 

Page 78

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

Dawn Highton (Shared 
Service Lead- Audit & 
Risk) 

dawn.highton@southribble.gov.uk 01772 
625625 

12/5/22 

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 

Annual Internal Audit 
Report and Opinion
2021/2022

South Ribble Borough Council
Date 24th May 2022

Page 81



                                   

 

 Introduction 
1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) note that a professional, independent and objective 

internal audit service is one of the key elements of good governance, as recognised throughout the UK 
public sector.  
 
The role of the Head of Audit, in accordance with the PSIAS, is to provide an annual opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s governance, risk management and control 
processes. 
 
The CIPFA Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government noted that the 
Head of Internal Audit in a local authority plays a critical role in delivering the authority’s strategic 
objectives by giving an objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk 
management and internal control. 
 
The opinion is based upon the work performed and other sources of assurance, achieved through a 
risk-based plan of work, previously agreed with the Shared Senior Management Team and approved by 
the Governance Committee.    
 

2 The Service Lead Audit and Risk performs the Head of Audit role for South Ribble Council and Shared 
Services. 
 

 
 The Role of Internal Audit and Management 
3 The statutory basis for Internal Audit in local government is the Accounts and Audit (England) 

Regulations 2015.  Internal Audit work is also governed by the PSIAS whose definition of internal audit 
is: 

 
“Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control, and governance processes.” 
 

4 The Council has adopted a three line of defence model in which the responsibility for implementing a strong 
system of governance and internal control within the Council lies primarily with the Shared Senior 
Management Team.  
 
Directors and Service Leads provide the first line of defence as they need to ensure that they maintain 
effective control procedures not least because services and business systems are subject to on-going 
change.  Compliance / support functions provide the second line of defence, with the third line being 
provided by Internal Audit and other inspection agencies. 
 
Internal Audit do not repeat the work of the second line, rather it is considered during reviews to assess 
the level of reliability which can be placed upon it. 
 

Page 82



                                   

 

5 . 

 
 

 
 Basis of the opinion 
6 The Service Lead Audit and Risk is responsible for the delivery of an annual audit opinion and report 

that can be used by the Council to inform its Annual Governance Statement.  
 
In assessing the level of assurance to be given, the opinion has been given based on:  
 

  Reviews undertaken and reports included within the Internal Audit Annual Plan; 
  Advice / consultancy work undertaken by the Internal Audit team;  
  The implementation of agreed management actions by Directorates;  
  The quality and performance of the Internal Audit service and the extent to which it complies 

with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and ISO 9001 Quality Management System; 
  Other sources of assurance where appropriate; 
  Analysis of the annual Service Assurance Statements. 

 
7 In giving the opinion it should be noted that an assurance opinion cannot be absolute as it is based on 

only those elements of governance and controls reviewed or taken into account as a result of any of the 
above activity. 
 

 
 Scope and Objectives of Internal Audit  
8 The scope and objectives of Internal Audit are set out in the Internal Audit Charter which was last 

approved by the Governance Committee in March 2022. 
 

9 The Internal Audit Charter also sets out any impairments or restriction in scope for Internal Audit as 
“The Service Lead for Audit and Risk is also operationally responsible for Insurance, Business 
Continuity, Emergency Planning and Health and Safety functions and for the administration and 
development of, and reporting on, the  Risk Management Strategy. It is considered prudent that any 
internal audit engagement covering the above operational areas and the risk management framework, 
especially for the formation of the annual opinion on the effectiveness of the control environment, would 
be overseen by the Council’s Monitoring Officer” 

Page 83



                                   

 

 A review of the risk management arrangements was undertaken during 2021-22, however due to the 
operational responsibility detailed above, this was carried out by an independent third party. 
 

 
 Audit Coverage for 2021/22 
10 
 

The annual Internal Audit Plan for 2021-2022 was approved by the Shared Senior Management Team 
and the Governance Committee in March 2021.  In order to provide an opinion, coverage of the whole 
authority should be obtained.   This Plan contained a total of 27 audit reviews. 

 
11 In January 2022, the Governance Committee approved the deferral of 4 reviews due to the limitations 

of resource, meaning that the planned coverage of work, by Directorate for the audit plan was as 
follows: 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 Internal Audit Opinion 
12 As the Service Lead Audit and Risk, I am satisfied that sufficient assurance work has been carried out 

to provide an annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
governance, risk management and control processes. 
 

13 Based on the work undertaken and evidence available to Internal Audit including other sources of 
assurance, it is considered that the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, 
risk management and control processes are adequate.  
 

14 The Council has made significant progress to improve the overall governance and risk management 
and arrangements. The past 12-18 months have seen the introduction of a range of corporate processes 
to provide a robust governance framework.   The challenge now for the Council is to ensure that the 

10%

24%

14%
5%

14%

14%

19% Corporate

Customer and Digital

Commercial and Property

Communities

Transforamtion and Partnership

Governance

Shared Financial Services

Audit Coverage 2021-2022

Page 84



                                   

 

momentum of continuous improvement does not wane and that the governance framework in place 
becomes fully embedded in all Council activities. 
 

 
 Work completed to support the opinion 
15 Planned Audit Work 

 
Each review undertaken by Internal Audit is awarded an assurance opinion derived from the findings 
and based upon the following definitions: 
 
Full the Authority can place complete reliance on the controls.  No control 

weaknesses exist. 
 

Substantial the Authority can place sufficient reliance on the controls. Only minor control 
weaknesses exist. 
 

Adequate the Authority can place only partial reliance on the controls.  Some control 
issues need to be resolved. 
 

Limited the Authority cannot place sufficient reliance on the controls.  Substantive 
control weaknesses exist 

 
Reviews completed during 2021-2022 and the assurance rating awarded is included in the table 
below: 
 
Full    No reviews have been awarded full assurance during 2021-2022 

Substantial   Sundry Debtors 
  Budget Monitoring 
  Creditors 
  Treasury Management 

Adequate   Business Rates 
  Disabled Facilities Grants 
  Performance Management / Data Quality 
  Overtime and Expenses 
  GDPR – Review of Data Sharing Agreements 
  Risk Management 
  Compliance with Contract Procedure Rules 
  Income Collection 

Limited   Health and Wellbeing Campus (redrafting of report from 19-20) 
  Council Tax 
  Neighbourhood Record Management 
  Facilities and Building Management 

  
16 Internal Audit have also issued the following reports / provided assurance which do not include a formal 

assurance rating: 
 

  Annual Governance Statement review to identify themes for inclusion in the AGS action plan; 
  COVID grant assurance returns for the Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy 

(BEIS); 
  National Fraud Initiative review of matches; 

Page 85



                                   

 

  ICT Audit Needs Assessment; 
  Health and Safety Review of other Council owned buildings (work undertaken in conjunction with 

the Council Health and Safety team). 
 

17 The Internal Audit Team and the Service Lead Audit and Risk have also participated in a number of 
corporate groups and initiatives throughout the year in order to provide support and advice on a variety 
of risk and control issues. These include: 
 

  Membership of the Senior Leadership Team; 
  Member of the officer Corporate Governance Group; 
  Customer Services Transformation project; 
  Commercial and Property projects (as and when required); 
  Human Resources Transformation project. 

 
Internal Audit also disseminate fraud alerts to relevant officers and manage accessibility to the National 
Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN).   
 
Full details of all the work undertaken is included at Appendix B – Summary of Internal Audit Work 
2021-2022. 
 

18 Due to the loss of key personnel within Planning and Development, it has been necessary to defer the 
Section 106 review.  This will be considered for inclusion in the Audit Plan October 22 to March 23 once 
new officers are in post.  In addition, whilst the ICT Audit Needs Assessment was completed during 
2021-22, the Internal Audit Plan contained a further ICT review however this was unable to be completed 
due to the implementation of the ICT Digital Strategy and on-going change within the ICT Service. 
 

19 Follow up of agreed management actions. 
 
Members will be aware that a significant amount of work has been undertaken during 2021-2022 to 
establish a robust process to monitor the implementation of agreed management actions from Internal 
Audit reports. 
 
In order to enable a rigorous monitoring system, all agreed management actions are added to the 
Council’s risk management system GRACE.   This allows action owners to update the system with 
progress made in a timely fashion and for monthly reports to be issued to Directors.   Outstanding audit 
actions are now a standing item on all Directorate monthly meetings. 
 
The table below sets out the number of agreed internal audit actions and their current status: 
 
 No of 

actions b/f 
from pre 
2021.22 

No of 
actions from 

21.22 
reports 

Total No due for 
implementation 
by March 22. 

No of actions 
implemented 

%age 
Implementation 

rate 

SRBC  41 43 84 73 47 64% 
Shared 
Services 

7 29 36 31 28 90% 

Total 48 72 120 104 75 72% 
 
 

20 Whilst the target implementation rate of 90% has not been met, the outstanding actions have been 
reviewed and it has been established that the reasons are largely due to the implementation of phase 2 
of shared services and the short term impact on ICT and staffing across the authority.    
 
Revised dates have been agreed for any actions still to be implemented and it is anticipated that the 
implementation rate will rise over the course of the next 6-8 months. 
 

Page 86



                                   

 

21 Other sources of assurance 
 
Internal Audit has continued to consider other forms of assurance received by the Council. When 
preparing the audit plan and when undertaking individual reviews, we assess other sources of 
information available to us and assess them for the level of reliance which can be placed on them. 
 

 
 

 Risk Management 
22 Over 2021-2022, a significant amount work has been undertaken to further embed the Council’s risk 

management arrangements.    This includes: 
 

  Development and approval of the Risk Management Strategy; 
  Re-launch of the Council’s GRACE risk management system;  
  Individual officer training delivered to over 140 officers within the Council and leisure company 

for risk management and the use of GRACE; 
  Dedicated risk management training for members; 
  Mandatory risk management training for all members of staff through the corporate Learning 

Hub; 
  Review of the Corporate Risk Register by the Senior Management Team and Governance 

Committee; 
  Development of risk registers to capture risks and mitigations for a range of activities, including 

corporate strategy projects, business planning, partnerships and operational risks; 
  Consideration of risk in all committee / Council reports; 
  Risk management as a standing item on Directorate monthly meetings; 
  Development of reports for the Officer Corporate Governance Group and Directors. 

 
23 It is acknowledged that whilst progress has been made over the past 12 months to embed risk 

management, there is still work to do to further improve and this is recognized by the action contained 
within the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan. 
 

 
 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
24 In accordance with the PSIAS, the Chief Internal Auditor (Service Lead Audit and Risk) has 

established a quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP) that covers all aspects of the 
internal audit activity. The QAIP must include both internal and external assessments.  This is included 
as a separate item on this agenda. 
 

25 The internal assessments include the following: 
 

  An annual self-assessment of the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Service audit service 
using the PSIAS and Local Government Application Note.  From this assessment an action 
plan highlighting areas for improvements will be developed.  
   

  Day-to-day monitoring of compliance with the procedures and audit methodology that conform 
to the PSIAS, which will be regularly reviewed.  All documentation used throughout the whole 
Internal Audit process is required to comply with the standards and this is recorded on final 
reports.   

26 An external assessment must be undertaken once every 5 years.  This was last undertaken in April 
2018 and reported to the Governance Committee in May 2018.  The assessment provides an external 
validation of the self-assessment with next assessment planned for 2023. 
 

Page 87



                                   

 

27 The internal annual self-assessment has now been conducted and the results are included as a 
separate report on the agenda.  This review confirmed that the Service largely conforms to the 
professional standards. All areas identified for improvement from the review from 2021 have been 
implemented with only one area identified as a partial conformance and is included on the action plan 
to progress over the coming months.  
 
Members will recall that the Internal Audit Service also successfully achieved the ISO9001 Quality 
Management System this year.   This clearly demonstrates the commitment to improvement and 
ensuring that a high quality service is provided to both Councils.   

 
 

 Internal Audit Performance  
28 
 

The table at Appendix C summarises the key performance data for the Internal Audit Service during 
2021-2022 and demonstrates that the majority of performance indicators have either been achieved or 
exceeded.   There is only the one indicator, % of agreed actions implemented by management, which 
is below target with the explanation provided above.   
 

 
 

 
 

Page 88



 Summary of Internal Audit Work 2021/22                                                      Appendix A 

Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 Assurance 
Rating 

Commentary 

 

Annual Governance 
Statement  
 

Not 
applicable 

The review comprised of detailed testing and analysis of the Local Code of Corporate Governance and Service 
Assurance Statements completed by Directors. 
 
Common themes of improvements are included within the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 2022 
 

Anti-Fraud & Corruption 
 

Not 
applicable 

A full review of the Council’s probity policies was undertaken and approved by the Governance Committee.  All 
policies are available to officers on Connect and the Council website. 
 
Throughout the year, fraud alerts received from various sources are circulated so that officers / the public are made 
aware of new threats and risks. 
 
Fraud and Corruption mandatory training module has been developed and is available on the Learning Hub.   
 

National Fraud Initiative 
(NFI) 

Not 
applicable 

Over the course of the past year the annual Council Tax Single Person Discount exercise data and COVID 
Business Grants second wave data has been submitted to the NFI.  The Council has continued to use the services 
offered by the NFI to undertake pre-payment checks to reduce the risk of grant payments being made either in error 
or fraudulent claims.  In addition, investigations arising from the biennial NFI has led to the recovery of Council Tax 
(due to Council Tax Reductions being claimed in error) £7025 and the removal of 15 applicants from the housing 
waiting list.  

 
COVID Support Work 
 

Not 
applicable 
 

A considerable amount of work has been undertaken in support of the various grants paid over the past 12 months.   

Newly introduced processes were considered by Internal Audit prior to implementation to provide assurance that 
they are robust, meet Government requirements and measures are in place to ensure fraudulent activity is 
minimised for grant payments.   

Internal Audit participated in the BEIS post payment assurance verification process; providing the required evidence 
to support the payments made are compliant with the grant eligibility criteria. 
 

Health and Wellbeing 
Campus 
 

Limited All documentation from the initial Internal Audit review carried out in 19/20 was re-examined and the report re-
drafted.  The final report was presented to the Governance Committee in September 2021. 
 
 
 

P
age 89



 Summary of Internal Audit Work 2021/22                                                      Appendix A 

Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 Assurance 
Rating 

Commentary 

 

Council Tax Limited The Service has recently undergone significant changes over the last few months and during the course of our review 
it was established as a shared service with Chorley Council. A number of experienced officers have left the 
organisation. Furthermore, Revenues and Benefits Officers are providing ongoing assistance to colleagues in 
Gateway and due to this there is a backlog of approximately 6 weeks for the administration of day to day (incoming 
mail, discount applications and general enquiries) that is likely impact on the status of customer accounts. 
 
Despite the above, processes in place for Council Tax are generally well established, however some key controls 
have not been operational or require strengthening.   Actions have been agreed with officers to mitigate the risks 
identified during the review.  
 

Business Rates Adequate Whilst processes in place for NNDR are generally well established some key controls have not been operational or 
require strengthening, largely due to the pandemic.  A range of management actions have been agreed to ensure 
the controls are re-instated or strengthened. 
 

Sundry Debtors Substantial This was a risk-based review and only minor improvements are required to strengthen the current arrangements in 
place. 
 

Customer Services 
Transformation Project 

Not 
applicable  

Following the implementation of a Shared Service within Customer Services, Internal Audit have played an active 
role in the project team reviewing and aligning processes to ensure they are both robust and resilient. 
 

ICT - Audit Needs 
Assessment 

Not 
applicable 

To establish a framework of assurance within ICT, a comprehensive audit needs assessment was undertaken which 
involved gaining a full understanding of the both current status of ICT and future proposals.  This will be used to 
ensure reviews undertaken in 2022/23 are risk based, meaningful and targeted at high risk areas. 
 

ICT Review Deferred This review was unable to be completed due to the implementation of the ICT Digital Strategy and on-going change 
within the ICT Service. 
 

Neighbourhoods Record 
Management 
 

Limited Neighbourhood Services maintain a core database for their Grounds Maintenance and Streetscene Services which 
encompasses records for inspections and maintenance schedules for work scheduling and ad hoc jobs.   
The purpose of this review was to provide assurance or otherwise that the information held within the database is 
well maintained, up to date and supported with accurate records to aid with efficiencies and improve customer 
satisfaction with the Council’s outdoor spaces. 
The review identified a number of key control issues and a full copy of the report was provided to members at the 
meeting in September 2021. 
 

P
age 90



 Summary of Internal Audit Work 2021/22                                                      Appendix A 

Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 Assurance 
Rating 

Commentary 

 

Section 106 Agreements Deferred As highlighted in the body of the report, this review has had to be deferred due to the loss of key personnel within 
Planning and Development.   This review will be considered for inclusion for the Internal Audit Plan October – 
March. 
 

Asset Management / 
Review of Other Council 
Buildings 

Not 
applicable  

This review was undertaken in conjunction with the health and safety team and focussed on compliance with 
statutory health and safety building legislation for all council buildings (excluding commercial properties and the 
Civic Centre).   
 
It was established that whilst there was compliance with electrical testing, legionella and gas testing, however gaps 
were identified with fire risk assessments and asbestos monitoring.   Actions to improve record management and 
monitoring arrangements to prevent re-occurrences of the issues identified were agreed. 
 

Leisure Centres Not 
applicable 
 

The review has been completed and report presented to the Board of Directors of South Ribble Leisure Limited. 

Facilities and Building 
Management 
 

Limited A full copy of the final report was presented to the Governance Committee in January 2022. 
The final report contained actions with short timescales for implementation due to the criticality of the issues 
identified.   Progress on the implementation of actions has been reported to the Committee in January 22 and March 
22. 
 

Disabled Facilities Grants Adequate Whilst processes in place for Disabled Facilities Grants are generally well established some key controls have not 
been operational or require strengthening, largely due to the pandemic.  A range of management actions have been 
agreed to ensure the controls are re-instated or strengthened. 
 
Established controls have now been reinstated, however due to the control changes in place during the period of 
review an Adequate assurance rating was awarded for this review. 
 

Performance Management / 
Data quality 
 

Adequate The Council is committed to delivering high quality and value for money services for its residents. The achievement 
of this is measured and reported through its performance management framework.  This review considered the 
progress made since the development of the Performance Management Framework and verification of the reported 
figures for Q3 20/21 and Q1 21/22. 

 
 Internal Audit undertook an initial review of Q3 (20/21) corporate strategy performance measures and identified that 

whilst progress has been made by directorates, key issues were found that demonstrated a need for greater 
oversight of the data collection system by the responsible officers, in conjunction with the authorising officers. 

P
age 91



 Summary of Internal Audit Work 2021/22                                                      Appendix A 

Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 Assurance 
Rating 

Commentary 

 

Subsequent Internal Audit testing on the performance measures for Q1 (21/22) found that improvements had been 
made, however despite the amount of training delivered and support provided to collection and responsible officers 
since the launch of the Performance Management Framework, a small number of indicators were still incorrectly 
reported.    

 
Recruitment and Selection / 
Human Resources 
Transformation Project 
 

Not 
applicable 

Due to the HR transformation project which encompassed a new payroll system and a suite of joint HR policies, it 
was agreed that it would be more beneficial for Internal Audit to play an active role in the project team to assist with 
the smooth transition to the new provider.    
 

Payroll – Overtime and 
Expenses 

Adequate This audit was a planned audit review undertaken in accordance with the agreed 2021-22 Internal Audit Plan, 
however since the plan was agreed the Council has been working towards implementing a new payroll system and 
a suite of joint HR policies across both Councils that will change processes for claiming overtime and expenses 
going forward. This review was undertaken to ascertain the level of compliance with the current policies and 
arrangements to ensure that any findings can be addressed and encompassed within the new processes taking 
effect from April 2022 and allow targeted training to be delivered.  
 
Our review confirmed that there are established arrangements in place at each Council to claim, authorise and 
reimburse expense and overtime payments and that these arrangements are generally followed.  Recommendations 
were agreed to improve arrangements in relation to the retention of documentation and guidance. 
 

GDPR – Data Sharing Adequate Our work has established that the Council has a comprehensive Record of Processing Activities (ROPA) in place 
that is easily accessible to enable Information Asset Owners (IAOs) to access and edit this information with ease. 
The DPO has undertaken proactive measures to ensure that the Councils contracts contain appropriate data 
sharing clauses or agreements and all contract managers were contacted by the DPO during 2021 and instructed to 
review contracts that involve the processing of personal data to ensure that a suitable data sharing clause is 
included. 
 
Testing of sampled contracts confirmed the presence of data sharing agreements/clauses that were in accordance 
with South Ribble standard agreements, Management actions were agreed to strengthen the Record of Processing 
Activity (ROPA). 
 

Risk Management Adequate The review established that overall procedures are in place to record and monitor risks.  Whilst some work has been 
undertaken to help embed these procedures there is still work to be done to ensure that the recording and 
evaluation of all risks have been fully completed on the dedicated risk management system GRACE.      
 

P
age 92



 Summary of Internal Audit Work 2021/22                                                      Appendix A 

Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 Assurance 
Rating 

Commentary 

 

Compliance with contract 
procedure rules 
 

Adequate This audit review was to provide assurance over compliance with the current Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs)  to 
ensure contracts are procured in a fair and transparent manner and achieve value for money.   
 
We were able to establish that there was a high level of compliance with the Councils CPRs and evidence was 
available to support that the essential processes within the procurement cycle had been followed.  There were 2 
identified areas for improvement relating to the population of the contract management system and contract finder 
 
In addition we were unable to locate a small number of signed contracts within our sample.  This may lead to issues 
should there be a dispute but generally if a procurement methodology has been followed the terms will have been 
treated as agreed.   
 

Budget Monitoring and 
reporting   
 

Substantial Our work has established that the budget monitoring process has significantly improved over the past 12 months, with 
monthly budget monitoring reports issued.  The style and content of the report is now consistent across the two 
authorities and the use of narrative helps to draw out any significant issues.    
 
There are no formal departmental procedures documented for finance staff to follow meaning there is a risk to the 
council that errors may occur and guidance notes or training for budget holders has not been carried out.  
 

Bank Reconciliation Not 
applicable 
 

Whilst this was included as a separate review, bank reconciliations were included Income Collection and Treasury 
Management. 

Creditors Substantial Our work has confirmed that since our last review, a significant amount of work has been undertaken to improve the 
control environment since the 2019/20 review.  Controls in place for Creditors are generally well established and 
operating as intended, and a number of processes have been strengthened.   
 
There are only a couple of areas which could be further strengthened and actions have been agreed in relation to 
these. 
 
 

Treasury Management  
 

Substantial The Treasury Management Service fulfils an important role in the overall financial management of the Council’s 
affairs.  It deals with ‘the management of the authority’s investments and cashflows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks’ (CIPFA). 
 

P
age 93



 Summary of Internal Audit Work 2021/22                                                      Appendix A 

Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 Assurance 
Rating 

Commentary 

 

 

 

Our work confirmed that the controls in place for Treasury Management are well established and generally 
operating as intended with only a few minor improvements required to strengthen operational procedures 
 

Income collection  
 

Adequate Our work established that the Council has sufficient arrangements in place for the collection, receipting and banking 
of Council income via the cash office and via other channels such as payments received via the website, post office 
and telephone, however some weaknesses were identified in other areas including: 
 

  The lack of an overarching banking and cash handling policy; 
  Improvements to the income reconciliation process (in relation to income directly from Chorley Leisure Ltd); 
  Establishing controls to restrict access to the dedicated cash receipting system and  
  Strengthening the supervisory / management checks. 

 P
age 94



APPENDIX C 
  

   
INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2021.2022 

 
 

Indicator 

 
 

Audit 
Plan 

 

 
 

Target 
2021/22 

 
 

Actual  
to Date  

 

 
 

Comments 

1 
 

 
% of planned time used  
 

SRBC 90% 94% Target exceeded.  Out turn figures based upon revised Audit 
Plan agreed by Governance Committee Jan 22. 

2 
 
% audit plan completed 
 

SRBC 90% 91% Target exceeded.  Out turn figures based upon revised Audit 
Plan agreed by Governance Committee Jan 22. 

 
3 
 

 
% satisfaction rating (assignment level) 
 

SRBC 90% 97% Target exceeded 

SRBC 90% 64% Below target 

4 

 
% of agreed actions implemented by 
management 
 SS 90% 90% 

 
Target achieved 
 

 
 

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

Review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit 2022 

 

  

Purpose of the Report 

1. This report relates to the results of the self-assessment carried out by Internal Audit against 
the requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and Local 
Government Application Note (LGAN) as a means of assessing the effectiveness of 
Internal Audit.  

 
Recommendations to Governance Committee  

2. That the Committee notes the results of the self -assessment recently undertaken as part 
of the Governance Committee’s consideration of the system of internal control.  
 

 
Reasons for recommendations 

3.  Evidence that the Council has an effective Internal Audit Service.  
 
 

Corporate priorities 

4.  The report relates to the following corporate priorities: (please bold all those applicable): 
 

 

 

Is this report confidential? No  
 

Report of Meeting Date 

Service Lead Audit and 
Risk 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Tuesday, 24 May 2022 

Is this decision key? No 

An exemplary council Thriving communities 

A fair local economy that works for everyone Good homes, green spaces, healthy places 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



 

Background to the report 

5. The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 requires that the relevant body , at 
least once in a year, to conduct a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal audit.  
The purpose behind the review is to ensure that the opinion in the annual report by the 
Head of Audit / Chief Audit Executive (CAE) can be relied upon as a key source of 
evidence in the Annual Governance Statement.  

 
6. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards came into effect on the 1st April 2013 and are 

applicable to the whole of the public sector.  A Local Government Application Note  was 
produced by CIPFA in collaboration with the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors as a 
sector specific requirement within the PSIAS framework.  The LGAN was re-issued in 2019 
with minor amendments. 

 
7. One of the Attribute Standards within the PSIAS refers to a Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme (QAIP) which must comprise both internal and external 
assessments.  At the meeting in May 2021, the Governance Committee requested sight 
of the QAIP, and this has been recently been reviewed and is included at Appendix A.   

 

8. The QAIP states that internal assessments are both on-going and periodic, whilst an 
external assessment must be undertaken at least once every five years. External 
assessment can be in the form of a full external assessment or a self-assessment with 
independent external validation.  The majority of Lancashire districts made the decision to 
continue with the annual self-assessment to be independently verified by a peer review.  
The last external assessment was conducted in April 2018 and reported to the Governance 
Committee with the next review scheduled for completion in early 2023. 

 

Annual Assessment 
 

9. In order to meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations, a self-
assessment has been carried out by the Service Lead Audit and Risk using the checklist 
contained within the revised LGAN.  The LGAN states that if the periodic assessment is in 
the form of a self-assessment, the checklist contained within the guidance should be used 
for assessing conformance as it covers both the PSIAS and the LGAN. 
 

10. The self-assessment is attached at Appendix B to this report.  This demonstrates that the 
Service conforms with the Standards.   There are 134 aspects of conformance, of which 
full conformance has been achieved for 128.   There are 5 areas which are not applicable 
to the Internal Audit Service with only 1 partial conformance. 
 

11. The Action plan at Appendix C shows the identified actions from the 2021 self-
assessment with an update of the current status of each action.   There is only the one 
action being carried forward to 2022 for the one area of partial conformance. 

 

Climate change and air quality 

12. The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability targets 
of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place. 

 

Page 98

Agenda Item 8



 

Equality and diversity 

13. The material presented and discussed in this report has no direct implications on equality 
and diversity.   

Risk 

14. Failure to undertake the annual self-assessment against the PSAIS and LGAN will leave 
the Council unable to demonstrate that the Internal Audit Service conforms  with the 
expected Standards.  

Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer 

15. No comment 
 

Comments of the Monitoring Officer 

16. No comment 
 

Background documents  

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

Local Government Application Note 

Appendices  
Appendix A – Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
Appendix B  - Self Assessment  

Appendix C – Action Plan  

 

Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

Dawn Highton (Shared 
Service Lead- Audit & 
Risk) 

dawn.highton@southribble.gov.uk 01772 
625625 

4.4.22 

Page 99

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

QUALITY ASSURANCE & 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME

April 2022

Page 101



                                   

 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The PSIAS require the Chief Audit Executive to develop and maintain a Quality 
Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) to enable the internal audit activity 
to be assessed against the PSIAS (i.e. Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of 
Ethics and the Standards themselves) for conformance. 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require a relevant authority to conduct a 
review each financial year of the effectiveness of the system of internal control. Since 
Internal Audit is a significant component of internal control, it is appropriate for an 
annual review to be conducted of the effectiveness of internal audit. 
 
The PSIAS require that the QAIP must include both internal and external 
assessments. Internal assessments are both ongoing and periodical whilst external 
assessments must be undertaken at least once every five years. 
 
Internal Assessments:  

 
Ongoing Assessment 

This requires the CAE to establish policies and procedures to guide staff in the 
conduct of their duties to ensure they conform to the PSIAS. This is achieved in the 
following ways: 
 

  The Quality System includes procedures which are maintained by the Chief 
Audit Executive to provide staff with detailed information regarding the various 
elements of the audit process. This is contained on the Shared Drive.  
 

  The Quality system and associated documents not only explains about the 
audit process but also the way in which the Shared Internal Audit Service 
conducts itself, how work is recorded using an electronic record management 
system for evidencing and recording audit work and maintaining audit files. 
 

  These policies and procedures are updated on an ongoing basis through the 
issue of update messages to the staff with the content being updated within 
the Quality system.  
 

  The Quality system contains references to the audit planning process and 
how the annual audit plan is produced and approved by Governance 
Committee.  Once approved, the CAE then allocates the plan amongst the 
auditors. This is usually based on a combination of factors; namely familiarity 
with the audit activity, the auditor has some existing knowledge of the service. 
However, the CAE has to be aware of other factors here:  
 

o over familiarity with the service which may lead to complacency 
o the need to provide audit staff with variety in their work  
o the need to ensure the audit work is commensurate with the skills and 

experience and competence of the auditor concerned 
  

  The CAE ensures that the audit review has been undertaken in accordance 
with the Quality system and that all necessary aspects of the audit have been 

Page 102



                                   

 

carried out and the findings and conclusions within the report are supported 
by appropriate evidence.  
 

  A review process in which the CAE / Senior Auditor considers the audit 
working papers and report and raises any queries with the auditor carrying 
out the review.  
 

  Satisfaction Surveys (Assignment level) are issued with the Final Audit report 
and are issued to the lead contact.  These seek feedback about various 
aspects of the audit, the auditor’s approach and the usefulness of the audit.  
 
 

  A set of Performance Indicators designed to give an indication of the success 
in the delivery of the service. The following indicators are maintained: 
 
Performance Indicator Target 
% of planned time used  90% 
% audit plan completed 90% 
% satisfaction rating (assignment level) 90% 
% of agreed actions implemented by management 90% 

 
 
Service Development.  
 
The Shared Internal Audit Service develops through various means including:  
 

  Institute of Internal Auditors – information is regularly received 
by email of relevant courses put forward by the IIA.  

  North West and North Wales Regional Audit Group events – 
seminars and weekend events designed to keep auditors up to 
date and identify potential improvements  

  Other courses – short courses offered by a range of training 
providers. 

 
In addition, on an annual basis, a Business Plan is compiled and approved. This 
contains individual projects to improve the Internal Audit Service and progress 
against these is monitored through the year.  
 
 
Internal Performance Reviews. 
 
The Shared Internal Audit Service complies with the corporate management 
performance framework.   This comprises of the automated performance review 
process, three times per annum and regular meetings (121s) with their immediate 
line manager. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 103



                                   

 

Periodic Assessment 
 

The periodic assessment is in the form of a PSIAS self-assessment which is 
completed annually by the CAE.  This is challenged internally by the Corporate 
Governance Group.  Following this, the self-assessment is reported to Governance 
Committee in May who are asked to note the results as part of the Committee’s 
consideration of the system of internal control (Ref: Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015). The conclusion regarding conformance with the Standards then forms part of 
the authority’s Annual Governance Statement. 
 
Any significant areas of non-compliance with the PSIAS that are identified through 
the self-assessment will be reported in the Annual Report and used to inform the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 

External Assessments 
 
The requirement for an external assessment to be carried out at least once every five 
years can be satisfied by either arranging for a full external assessment, carried out 
by a person(s) from outside the organisation, or a self-assessment with external 
validation. 
 
Approach 
 
In March 2014, the Governance Committee confirmed that the approach to be taken 
for the external assessment would be a self-assessment with external validation 
using a Peer Review approach amongst the Lancashire districts. 
 
The Lancashire districts have appointed a Subgroup to determine the exact approach 
to be adopted and they have developed a Memorandum of Understanding setting out 
the approach together with a draft format of a report. A timetable has been developed 
for those authorities who have agreed to participate, leading up to March 2023 by 
when all reviews must be completed in order to meet the five year requirement. 
 
Scope of the Assessment 
 
The external validation will consist of a broad scope of coverage primarily designed 
to assess the extent of conformance with the Standards. This will be determined 
through an examination of a range of documentation including the Internal Audit 
Charter, the Audit Plan, its policies, procedures and practices.  
 
The assessment will also comprise completion of a questionnaire and short 
interviews with key officers within the council, designed to assess the quality of 
relationship that internal audit has with its customers. In other words, the review will 
look beyond the simple checklist approach seek to identify the extent to which 
internal audit adds value to the organisation.  
 
The outcome of the review will be a written report containing an action plan in 
response to any significant comments and recommendations that may be identified.  
 
Any significant areas of non-compliance with the PSIAS that are identified through 
the self-assessment will be reported in the Annual Report and used to inform the 
Annual Governance Statement.

Page 104



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

1 Mission of Internal Audit 

Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and Local Government Application 
Note (LGAN), does the internal audit activity aspire to accomplish the 
Mission of Internal Audit as set out in the PSIAS? 

To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and 
objective assurance, advice and insight. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Arrangements set out 
within Internal Audit 
Charter.  Annual Audit 
Plan and Opinion.    
 

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

2 Definition of Internal Auditing 

Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of the PSIAS and 
LGAN, is the internal audit activity independent and objective? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

√ Arrangements set out 
 within Internal Audit 
 Charter.   Financial 
 Procedure Rules.  

 
 

   
 
 

Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of the PSIAS 
and LGAN, does the internal audit activity use a systematic and disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, 
control and governance processes within the organisation? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  The Internal Audit Manual 
and associated 
procedures  

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

3 Core Principles 

The Core Principles, taken as a whole, articulate internal audit effectiveness, 
and provide a basis for considering whether the review of conformance with 
the attribute standards and performance standards reflects full conformance, 
partial conformance or non-conformance with the PSIAS and the Local 
Government Application Note. In making this assessment, the assessor should 
have regard to positive evidence of conformance or non-conformance and the 
lack of evidence of non- conformance where positive evidence is difficult to 
obtain. 

 

Where there are instances of partial conformance or non-conformance in 
particular areas, you may need to make a judgment having regard to 
materiality and other factors in order to form a view on whether the internal 
audit activity CONFORMS with a particular Core Principle. Any such 
judgments should be highlighted and explained. 

 

Demonstrates integrity. 

Having regard to your review of conformance with the Code of Ethics 
(Integrity, Seven Principles of Public Life), do you consider that the 
internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by 
demonstrating integrity? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  All members of IA team 

professionally qualified 
and comply with  
awarding bodies Code of 
Ethics.   Staff declarations. 
Register of Interest  

Page 105



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Demonstrates competence and due professional care. 

Having regard to your review of conformance with the Code of Ethics 
(Competence, Confidentiality, Seven Principles of Public Life) and any other 
evidence from the review of conformance with Standards, do you consider 
that the internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by 
demonstrating competence and due professional care? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Compliance with 
awarding bodies Code of 
Ethics 

  Specialist skills procured 
when required (ICT) 

  Experienced Audit Team 
  Audit Manual and 

procedures 
 

 
Is objective and free from undue influence (independent). 

Having regard to your review of conformance with the Code of Ethics 
(Objectivity, Seven Principles of Public Life) and any other evidence from the 
review of conformance with standards, do you consider that the internal 
audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by being objective 
and free from undue influence (independent)? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Internal Audit Charter   
  Annual Report and 

Opinion 

Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the 
organisation. 

Based on your review of conformance with standards, do you consider that 
the internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by 
being aligned with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Risk assessment based 
upon current risks and 
objectives of the 
organization / service.  

  Internal Audit Plan 
compiled following 
consultation with 
Managers and risk 
analysis. Plan approved by 
Governance Committee  

Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced. 

Based on your review of conformance with standards, do you consider that 
the internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by being 
appropriately positioned and adequately resourced? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Organisational structure 
  Audit Plan incl resources 

Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement. 

Based on your review of conformance with standards, do you consider that 
the internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by 
demonstrating quality and continuous improvement? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
 

√ Internal Audit self-
 assessment reported to 
 Governance Committee 
 May 2021 /May 22 
√ Quality Assurance and 
 Improvement 
 programme. 

 
Communicates effectively. 

Based on your review of conformance with standards, do you consider that 
the internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by 
communicating effectively? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Reporting arrangements 

as set out within the Audit 
Charter. 

Provides risk-based assurance.  

Page 106



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

Based on your review of conformance with standards, do you consider that 
the internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by 
providing risk-based assurance, based on adequate risk assessment? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Annual risk assessment 
undertaken to inform 
annual plan. 

  Review of risk registers 
  Service Assurance 

statements 
  Corporate risk registers 

Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused. 

Based on your review of conformance with standards, do you consider that 
the internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by being 
insightful, proactive, and future-focused? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Internal Audit 

involvement with project 
teams providing proactive 
advice and guidance on 
risk, governance and 
control (As per Internal 
Audit Plan). 

  New and emerging risks 
considered during the risk 
assessment and within 
each individual audit  

Promotes organisational improvement. 

Based on your review of conformance with standards, do you consider that 
the internal audit activity fully CONFORMS with the PSIAS and LGAN by 
promoting organisational improvement? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  CAE member of Senior 

Leadership Team and 
involvement with 
Corporate Governance 
Group 

  identification of key areas 
for improvement within 
the AGS following 
comprehensive review 
undertaken by IA. 

  Individual Internal Audit 
Reports 

Page 107



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

4 Code of Ethics  

Integrity 
Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of the 
PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider that internal auditors display integrity  
by: 
  Performing their work with honesty, diligence and responsibility? 
  Observing the law and making disclosures expected by the law and the 

profession? 
  Not knowingly partaking in any illegal activity nor engaging in acts that are 

discreditable to the profession of internal auditing or to the organisation? 
  Respecting and contributing to the legitimate and ethical 

objectives of the organisation? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
 
 

  Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme 

  Satisfaction surveys 
  Audit Charter – 

responsibilities 
  Signed Declaration of 

interests  
  Code of Conduct 
  Professional Code of 

Ethics 
  Audit Manual 

Objectivity 
Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of the 
PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider that internal auditors display objectivity 
by: 
  Not taking part in any activity or relationship that may impair or be 

presumed to impair their unbiased assessment? 
  Not accepting anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their 

professional judgement? 
  Disclosing all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may 

distort the reporting of activities under review? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme 
  Satisfaction surveys 
  Audit Charter – 

responsibilities 
  Signed Declaration of 

interests  
  Code of Conduct 
  Professional Code of 

Ethics 
  Audit Manual 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 Confidentiality 

Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of the PSIAS 
and LGAN, do you consider that internal auditors display due respect and 
care by: 
  Acting prudently when using information acquired in the course of their 

duties and protecting that information? 
  Not using information for any personal gain or in any manner that would 

be contrary to the law or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical 
objectives of the organisation? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme 
  Satisfaction surveys 
  Audit Charter – 

responsibilities 
  Signed Declaration of 

interests  
  Code of Conduct 
  Professional Code of 

Ethics 
  Audit Manual 

  
 
 
 

  

Page 108



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 Competency  

Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of the 
PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider that internal auditors display 
competence by: 
  Only carrying out services for which they have the necessary 

knowledge, skills and experience? 
  Performing services in accordance with the PSIAS? 
  Continually improving their proficiency and effectiveness and quality of 

their services, for example through CPD schemes? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  All members of IA team 

are professionally 
qualified.  

  Specialist skills procured 
when required (ICT) 

  Experienced Audit Team 
  On-going training and 

development (assessed 
through staff PDRs) 

 
 
   

 Seven Principles of Public Life  

Based on your review of conformance with other requirements of the 
PSIAS and LGAN, do you consider that internal auditors, whether 
consciously or through conformance with organisational procedures and 
norms, have due regard to the Committee on Standards of Public Life’s 
Seven Principles of Public Life? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  All members of IA team 
are professionally 
qualified and therefore 
comply with their 
awarding bodies Code of 
Ethics 

  Annual declarations of 
interest 

   Internal Audit Charter 
  Code of conduct  

 
   

Page 109



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Standards 
5 Attribute Standards 

5.1 1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility  

The questions in this section seek to confirm that the purpose, authority 
and responsibility of the internal audit activity have been properly 
defined consistent with the PSIAS, formally approved in an internal audit 
charter and periodically reviewed. 

 

Does the internal audit charter conform with the PSIAS by including a 
formal definition of: 
  the purpose 
  the authority, and 
  the responsibility 
of the internal audit activity consistent with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS)? 
CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

Internal Audit Charter  
 

  Purpose (section 1) 
  Authority (section 4) 
  Responsibilities (section 

7) 

Page 110



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Does the internal audit charter conform with the PSIAS by clearly and 
appropriately defining the terms ‘board’ and ‘senior management’ for the 
purposes of the internal audit activity? 

Note that it is expected that the Governance committee will fulfil the role 
of the board in the majority of instances. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
 

  Internal Audit Charter 
(Section 3.2) 

Does the internal audit charter also: 

  Set out the internal audit activity’s position within the 
organisation? 

  Establish the chief audit executive’s (CAE) functional reporting 
relationship with the board? 

  Establish the accountability, reporting line and relationship between the 
CAE and those to whom the CAE may report administratively? Where 
applicable, this will need to encompass shared service or external 
providers of internal audit, and the role of the contract manager. 

  Establish the responsibility of the board and also the role of the 
statutory officers (such as the CFO, the monitoring officer and the 
head of paid service) with regards to internal audit? 

  Establish internal audit’s right of access to all records, assets, 
personnel and premises and its authority to obtain such information 
and explanations as it considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities? 

  Define the scope of internal audit activities? 

  Recognise that internal audit’s remit extends to the entire control 
environment of the organisation? 

  Establish the organisational independence of internal audit? 

  Cover the arrangements for appropriate resourcing? 

  Define the role of internal audit in any fraud-related work? 

  Set out the existing arrangements within the organisation’s anti- fraud 
and anti-corruption policies, requiring the CAE to be notified of all 
suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety? 

  Include arrangements for avoiding conflicts of interest if internal 
audit or the CAE undertakes non-audit activities? 

  Define the nature of assurance services provided to the organisation, as 
well as assurances provided to parties external to the organisation? 

  Define the nature of consulting services? 

  Recognise the mandatory nature of the PSIAS? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

  Purpose (Section 1) 
 

  Reporting (section 5) 
 
 

  Organisational 
independence and 
objectivity (section 5) 

 
 

  Independence & Objectivity 
 
 

  Authority (section 4) 
 
 
 

  Scope & Responsibilities 
(section 6) 

  Scope & Responsibilities 
 

  Independence (section 5) 
 

  Responsibilities (section 7) 
 

  Scope of activities  (section 
6) 

 
  Independence & Objectivity 

 
  Scope & Responsibilities 

 
  Scope of Activities 

 
  Compliance with PSIAS 

(section 3) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 111



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Does the CAE periodically review the internal audit charter and present it to 
senior management and the board for approval? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Reviewed and presented to 
Governance Committee 
March 21 / March 22 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.2 1100 Independence and Objectivity  

The questions in this section seek to confirm that the internal audit 
activity is independent and internal auditors are objective in 
performing their work. 

 

Does the CAE have direct and unrestricted access to senior 
management and the board? 

Does the CAE have free and unfettered access to, as well as 
communicate effectively with, the chief executive or equivalent and the 
chair of the Governance committee? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  As per Internal Audit 

Charter 
 

  As per Internal Audit 
Charter  

 
 

Does the CAE attend Governance committee meetings? 

Does the CAE contribute to Governance committee agendas? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  CAE attendance and 
participation at Governance 
committee meetings  

Are threats to objectivity identified and managed at the following 
levels: 

  Individual auditor? 

  Engagement? 

  Functional? 

  Organisation? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
 

  Declaration of interests 
form 

  Internal Audit Plan 
  Internal Audit Charter 

(Independence) 
  Code of Conduct 
  Code of Ethics 

 
 1110 Organisational Independence  

This subsection seeks to confirm that reporting and management 
arrangements been put in place that preserve the CAE’s independence and 
objectivity. 

This is of particular importance when the CAE is line-managed by 
another officer of the authority. 

 

Does the CAE report to an organisational level equal or higher to the 
corporate management team? 

Does the CAE report to a level within the organisation that allows the 
internal audit activity to fulfil its responsibilities? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  CAE reports to Director of 
Governance who is a 
member of the Shared 
Senior Management Team 

  Internal Audit Charter 
(reporting and monitoring) 

  Financial Procedure Rules 
  Organisation structure  

Page 112



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Does the CAE’s position in the management structure: 

  Provide the CAE with sufficient status to ensure that audit plans, 
reports and action plans are discussed effectively with the board? 

  Ensure that he or she is sufficiently senior and independent to 
be able to provide credibly constructive challenge to senior 
management? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Audit Plan reported to and 

approved by Governance 
committee March 2022 

  All final reports and action 
plans agreed and issued to 
Directors.  

  Internal Audit Charter 
  Organisation Structure 

Does the CAE confirm to the board, at least annually, that the internal 
audit activity is organisationally independent? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Annual Audit Report  

Is the organisational independence of internal audit realised by 
functional reporting by the CAE to the board? 

The ‘Interpretation’ to PSIAS 1110 provides examples of factors which 
may indicate that the CAE reports functionally to the Board, which 
include where the board: 

  approves the internal audit charter 

  approves the risk-based audit plan 

  approves the internal audit budget and resource plan 

  receives communications from the CAE on the activity’s 
performance (in relation to the plan, for example) 

  approves decisions relating to the appointment and removal of the 
CAE 

  approves the remuneration of the CAE 

  seeks reassurance from management and the CAE as to whether 
there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations. 

 

The Public Sector Interpretation to PSIAS 1110 notes that board 
approval of CAE remuneration does not generally happen in the UK 
public sector, and that the underlying principle is therefore that the 
independence of the CAE must be safeguarded by ensuring that their 
remuneration or performance assessment is not inappropriately 
influenced by those subject to audit. 

EQA assessors should therefore consider whether adequate steps are 
taken to safeguard the independence of the CAE by ensuring that 
remuneration or performance assessment is not inappropriately 
influenced by those subject to audit. This might for example 

reflect some involvement of the chief executive in the performance 
assessment process or feedback from the Governance committee chair. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
            Reports to Governance 
 Committee indl: 
 Audit Plan (March 22) 
 Audit Charter (March 22) 
 Audit Plan (March 22 
 resources. 
 Audit Interim reports (Sept/ 
 Nov / Jan)  
 Annual report incl opinion 
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 113



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

1111 Direct Interaction with the Board  

Does the CAE communicate and interact directly with the board? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  As per Internal Audit Charter  
  Governance committee 

meetings and minutes  / 
Chairs Brief 

  Ad-hoc meetings 
  All reports in Service Lead 

name 
   

1112 Chief Audit Executive Roles Beyond Internal Auditing   

Where the CAE has roles or responsibilities that fall outside of internal 
auditing, are adequate safeguards in place to limit impairments to 
independence or objectivity? 

Does the board periodically review these safeguards? 

CONFORMS  PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

           Internal Audit Charter 
 includes safeguards  

Page 114



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

1112 Chief Audit Executive Roles Beyond Internal Auditing  

Where the CAE has roles or responsibilities that fall outside of internal 
auditing, are adequate safeguards in place to limit impairments to 
independence or objectivity? 

Does the board periodically review these safeguards? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

           Internal Audit Charter 
 includes safeguards 
 
       √      Internal Audit periodically 
 reviewed and approved by 
 Governance Committee 

1120 Individual Objectivity  

Do internal auditors have an impartial, unbiased attitude? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Professional Code of Ethics 
  Internal Audit Charter 
  Satisfaction survey at end of 

each audit would likely 
indicate any difficulties  

  Officer declarations 

Do internal auditors avoid any conflict of interest, whether apparent or 
actual? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Signed declaration of 
interests 

  Professional code of ethics 

1130 Impairment to Independence or Objectivity  

If there has been any real or apparent impairment of independence or 
objectivity, has this been disclosed to appropriate parties (depending on the 
nature of the impairment and the relationship between the CAE and senior 
management/the board as set out in the internal audit charter)? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

Does review indicate that work allocations have operated so that internal 
auditors have not assessed specific operations for which they have been 
responsible within the previous year? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Internal Audit Charter 
           Staff are experienced                                                      
 auditors and have had no 
 operational responsibilities 
  

If there have been any assurance engagements in areas over which the CAE 
also has operational responsibility, have these engagements been overseen 
by someone outside of the internal audit activity? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Review of Risk Management 
undertaken by external 3rd 
party to maintain 
independence 

Is the risk of over-familiarity or complacency managed effectively: for 
example by rotating assignments for ongoing assurance engagements and 
other audit responsibilities periodically within the internal audit team? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Allocation of work based on 
skills, knowledge and 
experience of audit team, 
where possible 
responsibilities and 
assurance engagements are 
periodically rotated.  

 
Have internal auditors declared interests in accordance with 
organisational requirements? 

  Signed declaration of 
interests forms. 

Page 115



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Where any internal auditor has accepted any gifts, hospitality, inducements 
or other benefits from employees, clients, suppliers or other third parties 
(other than as may be allowed by the organisation's own policies), has this 
been declared and investigated fully? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

            None offered or accepted, 
 however, process covered 
 within Code of Conduct    

Does review indicate that no instances have been identified where an internal 
auditor has used information obtained during the course of duties for 
personal gain? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  None identified  

Have internal auditors disclosed all material facts known to them which, if 
not disclosed, could distort their reports or conceal unlawful practice, 
subject to any confidentiality agreements? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Declaration of Interests 
signed by auditors 

  Professional Code of Ethics     

If there has been any real or apparent impairment of independence or 
objectivity relating to a proposed consulting services engagement, was this 
disclosed to the engagement client before the engagement was accepted? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  No impairment of 
independence or objectivity 
noted     

Where there have been significant additional consulting services agreed 
during the year that were not already included in the audit plan, was 
approval sought from the board before the engagement was accepted? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Any significant changes to 
the approved audit plan 
would be reported to the 
Governance committee for 
approval  

Page 116



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

5.3 1200 Proficiency and Due Professional Care  

This section seeks to confirm that engagements are performed with 
proficiency and due professional care, having regard to the skills and 
qualifications of the CAE and their staff, and how they exercise their 
capability in practice. 

 

1210 Proficiency  

Does the CAE hold a professional qualification, such as CMIIA/CCAB or 
equivalent? 

Is the CAE suitably experienced? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  CMIIA 
  Service Lead JD 

  
   9 years Head of Audit 

experience 

Is the CAE responsible for recruiting appropriate internal audit staff, in 
accordance with the organisation’s human resources processes? 

Does the CAE ensure that up-to-date job descriptions exist that reflect roles 
and responsibilities and that person specifications define the required 
qualifications, competencies, skills, experience and personal attributes? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  CAE fully responsible for 

recruitment. 
  Up to date Job descriptions 

and person specifications 
e.g. Senior Auditor and 
Auditor posts 

 
 
  
 

Having regard to the answers to the other questions in this section and other 
matters, does the internal audit activity collectively possess     or obtain the 
skills, knowledge and other competencies required to perform its 
responsibilities? 

Where the internal audit activity does not possess the skills, knowledge and 
other competencies required to perform its responsibilities, does the CAE 
obtain competent advice and assistance? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Through in-house, external 
training courses, 
networking.  
 

  Specialist skills for ICT audit 
bought in. 

 

Do internal auditors have sufficient knowledge to evaluate the risk of fraud 
and anti-fraud arrangements in the organisation? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  All auditors sufficiently 
experienced.   

  Internal Audit procedures 
clearly specify the need to 
consider fraud risks.     
 

Do internal auditors have sufficient knowledge of key information 
technology risks and controls? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Staff have a general 
knowledge. 

  Specialist ICT service is 
bought in for specific 
audits.  

Do internal auditors have sufficient knowledge of the appropriate computer-
assisted audit techniques that are available to them to perform their work, 
including data analysis techniques? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  One member of staff is 
trained in use of IDEA. Used 
primarily in Payroll and 
Creditors work. 
 

Page 117



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

1220 Due Professional Care  

Do internal auditors exercise due professional care by considering the: 

  Extent of work needed to achieve the engagement’s objectives? 

  Relative complexity, materiality or significance of matters to which 
assurance procedures are applied? 

  Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and 
control processes? 

  Probability of significant errors, fraud, or non-compliance? 

  Cost of assurance in relation to potential benefits? 

 

In doing the above, internal auditors must also consider how 
technology-based audit and other data analysis techniques can 
provide assurance. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Discussed and agreed with 

auditee / Engagement Plan 
  Testing of controls to 

mitigate risks as part of 
audit work 

  Through core audit work 
  Management actions 

considered for practicality 
of implementation and 
discussed with auditee prior 
to agreement 

 
  

Do internal auditors exercise due professional care during a consulting 
engagement by considering the: 

  Needs and expectations of clients, including the nature, timing and 
communication of engagement results? 

  Relative complexity and extent of work needed to achieve the 
engagement’s objectives? 

  Cost of the consulting engagement in relation to potential benefits? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

As above 

  

Page 118



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

1230 Continuing Professional Development  

 Has the CAE defined the skills and competencies for each level 
of auditor? 

 and 

 Does the CAE periodically assess individual auditors against 
the predetermined skills and competencies? 

  CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Job description for Senior 
Auditor and Auditor 

  Staff Performance development 
reviews regularly undertaken  

  Regular 1-1 discussions are held 
with each Auditor to discuss 
performance / progress against 
reviews etc.  

 

 Do internal auditors undertake a programme of   
continuing professional development? 

 and 
 Do internal auditors maintain a record of their professional 
development and training activities? 

 CONFORMS 
 

  CONFORMS 

 PARTIAL  NOT CONFORMING 

  Work undertaken and on-going 
training helps to ensure 
requirements for CPD are met. 

  The Corporate Learning Hub is 
utilized to hold all training data. 

 

Page 119



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

5.4 1300 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme  

The questions in this section seek to confirm that the CAE has 
developed and maintained a Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) through which conformance with the PSIAS can be 
and is properly assessed. 

 

Has the CAE developed a QAIP that covers all aspects of the internal 
audit activity and enables conformance with all aspects of the PSIAS 
to be evaluated? 

Does the QAIP assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal 
audit activity and identify opportunities for improvement? 

Does the CAE maintain the QAIP? 

Are any statutory requirements for review of the internal audit activity 
satisfied? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme 
(QAIP) in place including 
performance indicators and 
quality control of audit work. 

  QAIP periodically reviewed. 
  Referenced in Review of 

Effectiveness of Internal Audit 
to Governance Committee 
(May 22) 

 
 

1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme 

 

Does the QAIP include both internal and external assessments? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Specified in the QAIP  
 
 
 1311 Internal Assessments  

Does the CAE ensure that audit work is allocated to staff with the 
appropriate skills, experience and competence? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Reviews allocated on a 
quarterly basis and monitored  
through regular discussions 
with individual auditors 

  Specified in the QAIP 
 

Do internal assessments include ongoing monitoring of the internal 
audit activity, such as: 

  Routine quality monitoring processes? 

  Periodic assessments for evaluating conformance with the PSIAS? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  CAE or Senior Auditor reviews 
each audit assignment and 
reports 

  PSIAS checklist used for Annual 
Review of Effectiveness of IA  

  Specified in the QAIP 

Page 120



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Does ongoing performance monitoring contribute to quality 
improvement through the effective use of performance targets? 

  Is there a set of comprehensive targets which between them 
encompass all significant internal audit activities? 

  Are the performance targets developed in consultation with 
appropriate parties and included in any service level agreement? 

  Does the CAE measure, monitor and report on progress against 
these targets? 

  Does ongoing performance monitoring include obtaining 
stakeholder feedback? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Targets approved by 
Governance committee 
March 2022 

  Agreed part of Business 
planning  

  To be included with every 
progress report to 
Governance committee 

  Satisfaction survey issued 
following each review 

  Review progress monitored 
at regular 121s 

  Time Management System 
 

Are the periodic self-assessments or assessments carried out by people 
external to the internal audit activity undertaken by those with a sufficient 
knowledge of internal audit practices? 

Sufficiency would require knowledge of the PSIAS and the wider 
guidance available such as the Local Government Application Note 
and/or IIA practice advisories, etc. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Annual Self Assessments 
carried out by CAE   

   Memorandum of 
understanding sets out 
criteria for external 
assessment carried out by 
Lancashire Heads of Audit 
(Peer review) 

 
Does the periodic assessment include a review of the activity against the 
risk-based plan and the achievement of its aims and objectives? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Reported to Governance 
committee in each progress 
report 

1312 External Assessments  

Has an external assessment been carried out, or is one planned to be 
carried out, at least once every five years? 

Has the CAE discussed the alternative approaches to external assessment 
with the board? This should reflect the relative costs of the different 
approaches, the potential advantages of an external viewpoint, and 
whether there are factors which might be considered to warrant a 
demonstrably independent assessment. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  External peer review 
carried out April 2018.  

  Governance committee 
Report June 2018. 

  Next external peer review 
planned for 2023 

 

Page 121



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Has the CAE properly discussed the qualifications and independence of the 
assessor or assessment team with the board? 

In doing this, the CAE should consider whether the assessor or assessment 
team has demonstrated its competence in both the professional practice of 
internal auditing and the external assessment process. Competence can be 
demonstrated through both experience and theoretical learning. Experience 
of similar organisations or sectors is more valuable than less relevant 
experience. In the case of an assessment team, not all members need to 
have all the competencies 
– it is the team as a whole that is qualified. 

If the capability of the assessor or assessment team is not  immediately 
obvious, the CAE should document how they used professional judgement to 
decide whether this is sufficient to carry out the external assessment. 

If the assessor or assessment team has any real or apparent conflicts  of 
interest with the organisation, this should be clearly explained to the board, 
and safeguards should be put in place to minimise the effect of this on the 
conduct of the external assessment. 

Conflict of interest may include, but is not limited to, being a part of or 
under the control of the organisation to which the internal audit activity 
belongs. 

  Peer Review teams are all 
Lancashire Heads of Audit 
and any impairments will 
be taken into account by 
the Sub Group who 
appoint the reviewers for 
each authority. 

  Use of Lancashire Peer 
Review process agreed 
with the Governance 
Committee 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING  

Has the CAE agreed the scope of the external assessment with an appropriate 
sponsor, such as the chair of the Governance committee, the CFO or the chief 
executive? 

The CAE should also agree this scope with the external assessor or 
assessment team. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
     √   Memorandum of 
 Understanding in place. 

1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme 

 

Has the CAE reported the results of the QAIP to senior management and 
the board? 

Note that: 

  the results of both external and periodic internal assessment must be 
communicated upon completion 

  the results of ongoing monitoring must be communicated at least 
annually 

  the results must include the assessor’s or assessment team’s evaluation 
with regards to the degree of the internal audit activity’s conformance 
with the PSIAS. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

      √ Review of the 
 effectiveness of Internal 
 Audit reported to 
 Governance Committee 
 (May 22) 
     √ On-going monitoring 
 included in interim 
 reports to Governance 
 Committee and Corporate 
 Governance Group  
 throughout the year 
 including performance 
 indicators. 
      
 

 
 

Page 122



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Has the CAE included the results of the QAIP and progress against any 
improvement plans in the annual report? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Head of Audit Annual 
Report May 21 / May 22 

1321 Use of ‘CONFORMS with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’ 

 

Has the CAE stated that the internal audit activity CONFORMS with the 
PSIAS only if the results of the QAIP support this? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Included within every 
Internal Audit Report  

1322 Disclosure of Non-conformance  

Has the CAE reported any instances of non-conformance with the PSIAS 
to the board? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

            Annual Report May 21 

If appropriate, has the CAE considered including any significant deviations 
from the PSIAS in the governance statement and has this been evidenced? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 Not applicable 

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

6 Performance Standards 

6.1 2000 Managing the Internal Audit Activity  

The questions in this section seek to confirm that the internal audit activity’s 
work achieves the purposes and responsibility of the activity, as set out in the 
internal audit charter, and that the internal audit activity adds value to the 
organisation and its stakeholders by: 

  providing objective and relevant assurance 

  contributing to the effectiveness and efficiency of the governance, risk 
management and internal control processes. 

 

2010 Planning  

Has the CAE determined the priorities of the internal audit activity in a 
risk-based plan and are these priorities consistent with the 
organisation’s goals? 
Does the risk-based plan take into account the requirement to produce an 
annual internal audit opinion? 
Does the risk-based plan incorporate or is it linked to a strategic or high-
level statement of: 
  How the internal audit service will be delivered? 

  How the internal audit service will be developed in accordance with the 
internal audit charter? 

  How the internal audit service links to organisational objectives and 
priorities? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Risk based plans are 
developed annually 
consistent with the 
Council’s priorities, 
corporate and operational 
risk registers 

  Audit plan considers both 
assurance work and 
consultancy work on 
corporate plan / strategy 
projects. 

  Reviews cover broad 
range of service areas to 
enable an annual internal 
audit opinion to be made. 

    Internal Audit Manual  
   
 
 

Page 123



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Does the risk-based plan set out how internal audit’s work will identify and 
address local and national issues and risks? 

In developing the risk-based plan, has the CAE taken into account the 
organisation’s risk management framework and relative risk maturity of the 
organisation? 

If such a risk management framework does not exist, has the CAE used their 
judgement of risks after input from senior management and the board and 
evidenced this? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Audit Risk Assessment 
reflects risk position of 
each area of activity. 
Consideration given to 
range of factors including 
previous opinion, date last 
audited, new and 
emerging risks / changes 
to processes / staffing etc.  

  Audit Risk Assessment 
considers SSMT minutes, 
corporate, project and 
operational risk registers 

  Risk Management 
Strategy supported by 
discussions with all 
members of senior 
management 

 
 

Does the risk-based plan set out the: 

  Audit work to be carried out? 

  Respective priorities of those pieces of audit work? 

 

  Estimated resources needed for the work? 

Does the risk-based plan differentiate between audit and other types of 
work? 

Is the risk-based plan sufficiently flexible to reflect the changing risks and 
priorities of the organisation? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Plan now only developed 
for 6 months to allow 
focus on new and 
emerging risks 

  Audit Plan contains both 
assurance, consultancy 
and goverance reviews  
(approved by Governance 
committee ) 

  Priorities agreed with 
Directors and reflected in 
the timing of the review 

  Resources allocated 
  Audit Plans contain 

contingency time to allow 
for unplanned reviews / 
changes to planned 
reviews 

 
 
 
 

Does the CAE review the plan on a regular basis and has he or she adjusted 
the plan when necessary in response to changes in the organisation’s 
business, risks, operations, programmes, systems and controls? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Audit Plan kept under 
constant review and 
amended when 
necessary.  Any changes 
are reported to and 
approved by Governance 
committee Is the internal audit activity’s plan of engagements based on a 

documented risk assessment? 

Is the risk assessment used to develop the plan of engagements 
undertaken at least annually? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  An Audit risk assessment 
is used as basis for Audit 
Plan. 

  Audit Risk assessment 
updated throughout the 
year and used as basis of 
the development of the 
audit plan twice per year.  
 

 
 

  

Page 124



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

In developing the risk-based plan, has the CAE also given sufficient 
consideration to: 

  Any declarations of interest (for the avoidance for conflicts of 
interest)? 

  The requirement to use specialists, eg IT or contract and 
procurement auditors? 

  Allowing contingency time to undertake ad hoc reviews or fraud 
investigations as necessary? 

  The time required to carry out the audit planning process effectively as 
well as regular reporting to and attendance of the board, the 
development of the annual report and the CAE opinion? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
 
 

  Office declaration of 
interests 
 

  Procurement of ICT 
specialists 

 
  Contingency time 

included within Audit Plan 
 

  Plan allocations set out 
time for Audit Planning / 
Monitoring / Reporting 
and time for Governance 
committee reporting and 
attendance at meetings 

In developing the risk-based plan, has the CAE consulted with senior 
management and the board to obtain an understanding of the organisation’s 
strategies, key business objectives, associated risks and risk management 
processes? 

Does the CAE identify and consider the expectations of senior 
management, the board and other stakeholders for internal audit opinion 
and any other conclusions? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Senior Managers 

consulted on the Audit 
risk assessment and 
comments recorded. 

  Plan presented to SSSMT 
  Governance committee 

approval of audit plan  
  All involved with the 

planning process 
 

Does the CAE take into consideration any proposed consulting 
engagement’s potential to improve the management of risks, to add value 
and to improve the organisation’s operations before accepting them? 

Are consulting engagements that have been accepted included in the risk-
based plan? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Consultancy engagements 

included as part of the 
planning process 
 

  Plan includes consultancy 
/ projects etc. 
 

Page 125



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

2020 Communication and Approval  

Has the CAE communicated the internal audit activity’s plans and resource 
requirements to senior management and the board for review and 
approval? 

Has the CAE communicated any significant interim changes to the plan 
and/or resource requirements to senior management and the board for 
review and approval, where such changes have arisen? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Audit Plan reported to 
Shared Management Team 
and Governance 
committee.  

  Have previously reported 
changes and sought 
approval from the 
Governance committee 

 
Has the CAE communicated the impact of any resource limitations to 
senior management and the board? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Any resource limitations  
discussed with senior 
managers / CGG / 
Governance committee.   
(January 22 Report) 

 
2030 Resource Management  

Does the risk-based plan explain how internal audit’s resource 
requirements have been assessed? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Plan allocations set out 
the number of days 
available including both 
internal and external 
resources 

 
Has the CAE planned the deployment of resources, especially the timing of 
engagements, in conjunction with management to minimise disruption to 
the functions being audited, subject to the requirement to obtain sufficient 
assurance? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Timing of engagements 
discussed with Directors / 
Service Leads and 
recorded on Audit risk 
assessment and Audit 
Plan.   Issued to SSMT 
following approval of 
Governance Comm 

 

If the CAE believes that the level of agreed resources will impact adversely 
on the provision of the internal audit opinion, has he or she brought these 
consequences to the attention of the board? 

This may include an imbalance between the work plan and resource 
availability and/or other significant matters that jeopardise the delivery of 
the plan or require it to be changed. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Any concerns would be 
identified and discussed 
prior to production of and 
approval of the plan.  

 
 

Page 126



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

   
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

2040 Policies and Procedures  

Has the CAE developed and put into place policies and procedures to 
guide the internal audit activity? 

Examples include maintaining an audit manual and/or using electronic 
management systems to guide staff in performing their duties in a manner 
that CONFORMS to the PSIAS 

Are the policies and procedures regularly reviewed and updated to 
reflect changes in working practices and standards? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

      √      Audit Manual and 
associated  procedures  
  Audit drive (electronic 

system) 
  Document templates  

 
 
 

2050 Coordination  

Does the risk-based plan include an adequately developed approach to using 
other sources of assurance and any work that may be required to place 
reliance upon those sources? 

The CAE should generally share information and coordinate activities with 
other internal and external providers of assurance and consulting services. 
They may also carry out an assurance mapping exercise, or make use of 
assurance mapping carried out by other assurance providers. 

They should also meet regularly with the nominated external audit 
representative to consult on and coordinate their respective audit plans. 

Where key organisational risks relate to work undertaken through 
partnerships, the auditor may be able to take assurance from work 
undertaken by others, or by obtaining assurance directly. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Assurances considered 
and collated at audit plan 
discussion stage,  

  Service Assurance 
Statements identify other 
sources of assurance 
given 

  Reports issued to External 
Audit 
 
 

2060 Reporting to Senior Management and the Board   

Does the CAE report periodically to senior management and the board on 
the internal audit activity’s purpose, authority, responsibility and 
performance relative to its plan? 

Does the periodic reporting also include significant risk exposures and 
control issues, including fraud risks, governance issues and other matters 
needed or requested by senior management and the board? 

Is the frequency and content of such reporting determined in discussion with 
senior management and the board and are they dependent on the 
importance of the information to be communicated and the urgency of the 
related actions to be taken by senior management or the board? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Progress against the plan,  
findings and KPIs 
presented to CGG 

  Interim reports presented 
to Governance committee  

  Issues raised with 
managers / directors 
when appropriate. 

  All other reviews reported 
in accordance with 
Governance committee 
timetable 
 

Page 127



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

2070 External Service Provider and Organisational Responsibility for 
Internal Auditing 

 

Where an external internal audit service provider acts as the internal audit 
activity, does that provider ensure that the organisation is aware that the 
responsibility for maintaining and effective internal audit activity remains 
with the organisation? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

Not applicable 

  

Page 128



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

6.2 2100 Nature of Work  

The questions in this section seek to confirm that the internal audit 
activity evaluates and contributes to the improvement of the 
organisation’s governance, risk management and internal control 
processes using a systematic and disciplined approach. 

 

2110 Governance  

Does the internal audit activity assess and make appropriate 
recommendations to improve the organisation’s governance processes for: 

  Making strategic and operational decisions? 

  Overseeing risk management and control? 

  Promoting appropriate ethics and values within the organisation? 

  Ensuring effective organisational performance management and 
accountability? 

  Communicating risk and control information to appropriate areas of the 
organisation? 

  Coordinating the activities of and communicating information among 
the board, external and internal auditors and management? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Overall aim of the IA Service 
(Audit Charter) 

  Through specific audit 
reports, including the annual 
audit of the  Governance / 
Risk Management 
Frameworks.   

  CAE involvement in 
Corporate Governance Group 

  Ownership of corporate 
policies i.e. anti-fraud, 
whistleblowing etc 

  Performance Management 
included within each 
engagement where 
appropriate 

  Performance Management 
included within Internal 
Audit Plan annually as a 
review. 

  Communicated through 
Audit reports and through 
provision of advice and 
guidance  

  Individual Audit reports 
issued to Directors /External 
Audit 

  Internal Audit annual report 
and progress reports to 
Governance committee  Has the internal audit activity evaluated the design, implementation and 

effectiveness of the organisation’s ethics-related objectives, programmes 
and activities? This is an area where the CAE may be able to use other 
sources of assurance. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Ownership of corporate 
policies i.e. anti-fraud, money 
laundering etc. 

  Through individual audit 
reviews incl. Ethical culture  

  SAS received and reviewed 
as part of the AGS process 

Has the internal audit activity assessed whether the organisation’s 
information technology governance supports the organisation’s strategies 
and objectives? This is an area where the CAE may be able to use other 
sources of assurance. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Salford Council 
commissioned to provide 
ICT assurance 

  ICT reports considered by 
the CGG  

Page 129



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

52 

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

2120 Risk Management  

Has the internal audit activity evaluated the effectiveness of the 
organisation’s risk management processes by determining that: 

  Organisational objectives support and align with the organisation’s 
mission? 

  Significant risks are identified and assessed? 

  Appropriate risk responses are selected that align risks with the 
organisation’s risk appetite? 

  Relevant risk information is captured and communicated in a 
timely manner across the organisation, thus enabling the staff, 
management and the board to carry out their responsibilities? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Review of Risk management 
included within Internal 
Audit Plan 

  Use of risk management 
framework 

  Use of GRACE risk 
management system to 
record risks and controls 

  All risks assigned to an owner  
  Corporate risk register 

reported and monitored  

Has the internal audit activity evaluated the risks relating to the 
organisation’s governance, operations and information systems 
regarding the: 

  Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives? 

  Reliability and integrity of financial and operational information? 

  Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes? 

  Safeguarding of assets? 

  Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and 
contracts? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Risk-based Audit Plan 
  Risk-based auditing for each 

individual audit review 
  All areas considered as part 

of planning / scope of each 
review as appropriate. 

  Service Assurance 
Statements reviewed by IA 
annually 

 

Has the internal audit activity evaluated the potential for fraud and also 
how the organisation itself manages fraud risk? 

CIPFA has issued a Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption, and strongly recommends that it is used as the basis for 
assessment of how an authority manages its fraud risk. 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Individual audit engagements 
specifically review identified 
fraud risks 

      Review to assesses the 
 council’s arrangements 
against CIPFA  Code of 
Practice and Fighting 
 Fraud and Corruption Locally 
 completed and  action plan 
 being developed. 

 

Page 130



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

53 

 
 

Do internal auditors address risk during consulting engagements 
consistently with the objectives of the engagement? 

Are internal auditors alert to other significant risks when undertaking 
consulting engagements? 

Do internal auditors incorporate knowledge of risks gained from consulting 
engagements into their evaluation of the organisation’s risk management  
processes? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  IA involved with project 
teams to provide advice and 
guidance on governance, 
control and risk.  

 

Do internal auditors successfully avoid managing risks themselves, 
which would in effect lead to taking on management responsibility, 
when assisting management in establishing or improving risk 
management  processes? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  GRACE system assigns risk 
owners to individual risks.  IA 
do not own any risks other 
than those relating to the IA 
service 

2130 Control  

Has the internal audit activity evaluated the adequacy and effectiveness 
of controls in the organisation’s governance, operations and information 
systems regarding the: 

  Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives? 

  Reliability and integrity of financial and operational information? 

  Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes? 

  Safeguarding of assets? 

  Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and 
contracts? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Risk-based Audit Planning 
process 

  Risk-based auditing for each 
individual audit review 

  All areas considered as part 
of planning / scope of each 
review as appropriate. 

  Risk-based Audit Plan 
   
  Service Assurance 

statements  
reviewed by IA annually 
 
 
 

 

Do internal auditors utilise knowledge of controls gained during 
consulting engagements when evaluating the organisation’s control 
processes? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Where appropriate 
  Knowledge shared within 

wider Audit and Risk team 
during fortnightly meetings 

6.3 2200 Engagement Planning  

Do internal auditors develop and document a plan for each 
engagement? 

Does the engagement plan include the engagements: 

  Objectives? 

  Scope? 

  Timing? 

  Resource allocations? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Standard document 

templates / Audit 
Engagement Plan issued 
agreed and issued at the start 
of each review. 

 
 
 
 

Page 131



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Do internal auditors consider the following in planning an 
engagement, and is this documented: 

  The objectives of the activity being reviewed? 

  The means by which the activity controls its performance? 

 

  The significant risks to the activity being audited? 

 

  The activity’s resources? 
 

 

  The activity’s operations? 

 

  The means by which the potential impact of risk is kept to an 
acceptable level? 

  The adequacy and effectiveness of the activity’s governance, risk 
management and control processes compared to a relevant 
framework or model? 

  The opportunities for making significant improvements to the 
activity’s governance, risk management and control processes? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
 

  Audit Engagement Plan and 
report 

  Review of  performance 
information is included 
within the engagement 
where appropriate 

  Use of risk registers and 
recorded in the Risk and 
Control Evaluation  

  Resource availability 
considered at the Audit 
Engagement Plan  stage and 
discussed during the initial 
meeting. 

  Part of audit planning and 
initial discussion with Service 
Lead incl. within the 
Engagement Plan 

  Review of the risk register 
and assessment of the 
controls in place 

  Basis of the risk based 
assignment.  Findings 
included within the report 

  Basis of the risk based 
assignment.  Findings and 
actions to improve included 
within the report 

 

Where an engagement plan has been drawn up for an audit to a party 
outside of the organisation, have the internal auditors established a 
written understanding with that party about the following: 

  Objectives? 

  Scope? 

  The respective responsibilities and other expectations of the 
internal auditors and the outside party (including restrictions on 
distribution of the results of the engagement and access to 
engagement records)? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
      √       Engagement plan developed 
 and agreed with wholly 
 owned companies prior to 
 commencement 

Page 132



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

For consulting engagements, have internal auditors established an 
understanding with the engagement clients about the following: 

  Objectives? 

  Scope? 

  The respective responsibilities of the internal auditors and the 
client and other client expectations? 

For significant consulting engagements, has this understanding been 
documented? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Engagement plan clearly sets 
out the role of Internal Audit 
within consulting 
engagements 

Page 133



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

2210 Engagement Objectives  

Have objectives been agreed for each engagement? 

Have internal auditors carried out a preliminary risk assessment of the 
activity under review? 

Do the engagement objectives reflect the results of the preliminary risk 
assessment that has been carried out? 

 

Have internal auditors considered the probability of the following when 
developing the engagement objectives: 

  Significant errors? 

  Fraud? 

  Non-compliance? 

  Any other risks? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Within Audit Engagement Plan  
and discussed at initial 
meeting. 

  Review of the risk register and 
compilation of the RCE  
 
 

  
  Audit engagement working 

papers 
 

  

Have internal auditors ascertained whether management and/or the 
board have established adequate criteria to evaluate and determine 
whether organisational objectives and goals have been accomplished? 

If the criteria has been deemed adequate, have the internal auditors 
used the criteria in their evaluation of governance, risk management and 
controls? 

  Most service areas have PIs to 
assess adequacy of 
performance and these are 
tested where appropriate and 
included within the 
Engagement Plan 

 

If the criteria has been deemed inadequate, have the internal auditors 
worked with management and/or the board to develop appropriate 
evaluation criteria? 

If the value for money criteria has been referred to, has the use of all the 
organisation’s main types of resources been considered, including 
money, people and assets? 

  If PI’s were inadequate we 
would identify and include 
within the IA report. 

  Where appropriate  

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING  

Do the objectives set for consulting engagements address governance, 
risk management and control processes as agreed with the client? 

Are the objectives set for consulting engagements consistent with the 
organisation’s own values, strategies and objectives? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Included within the Audit 
Engagement Plan  

 
2220 Engagement Scope 

 

Is the scope that is established for each engagement generally 
sufficient to satisfy the engagement’s objectives? 

Does the scope for each engagement include consideration of relevant 
systems, records, personnel and physical properties? Does this 
consideration include areas under the control of outside parties, where 
appropriate? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Audit Engagement Plan  
(reviewed and agreed with CAE 
and Directors) 

Page 134



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Where significant consulting opportunities have arisen during an assurance 
engagement, was a specific written understanding as to the objectives, 
scope, respective responsibilities and other expectations drawn up? 

Where significant consulting opportunities have arisen during an 
assurance engagement, were the results of the subsequent 
engagement communicated in accordance with the relevant 
consulting standards? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

This has not occurred as significant 
consultancy work is included within 
the IA Annual plan 

For each consulting engagement, was the scope of the engagement 
generally sufficient to address any agreed-upon objectives? 

If the internal auditors developed any reservations about the scope of a 
consulting engagement while undertaking that engagement, did 
they discuss those reservations with the client and therefore determine 
whether or not to continue with the engagement? 

During consulting engagements, did internal auditors address the controls 
that are consistent with the objectives of those engagements? 

During consulting engagements, were internal auditors alert to any 
significant control issues? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Included within Audit 
Engagement Plan  

 
  This has not occurred but 

discussion would take place if 
the situation arose 

 
  Key focus of the consultancy 

work 
  IA role is to ensure that 

governance, risk 
management and control 
issues are considered 
throughout the whole project 

 

2230 Engagement Resource Allocation  

Have internal auditors decided upon the appropriate and sufficient level 
of resources required to achieve the objectives of each engagement 
based on: 

a) The nature and complexity of the individual engagement? 

 

b) Any time constraints? 

 

c) The resources available? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Resource allocation is 
estimated for each review 
and is included within the 
Annual Plan 

  Plan is based on current 
knowledge of the system 
under review.    

  Plan allocations issued to all 
auditors 

  Time is monitored 
throughout the course of the 
audit to ensure resources are 
used effectively and 
efficiently. 

 
 

  

Page 135



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

2240 Engagement Work Programme  

Have internal auditors developed and documented work programmes that 
achieve the engagement objectives? 

Do the engagement work programmes include procedures for: 

  Identifying information? 

  Analysing information? 

  Evaluating information? 

  Documenting information? 

Were work programmes approved prior to implementation for each 
engagement? 

Were any adjustments required to work programmes approved 
promptly? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  RCE produced which details 
all the controls to be tested 
during the course of the 
review. 

  All working papers are 
retained on the Shared Audit 
network drive. 

  Experienced / Professionally 
qualified auditors able to use 
appropriate methods to 
identify, analyse , evaluate 
and document information in 
order to provide assurance or 
otherwise in all reviews 
undertaken 

  CAE / Senior Auditor 
approves all RCEs prior to 
review commencing. 

  Auditors can amend work 
programme according to 
complexity and time on 
approval by CAE 

Page 136



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

6.4 2300 Performing the Engagement  

The questions in this section seek to confirm that internal 
auditors analyse, evaluate and document sufficient, reliable, 
relevant and useful information to support engagement 
results and conclusions. 

 

2310 Identifying Information  

Do internal auditors generally identify (sufficient, reliable, 
relevant and useful) information which supports engagement 
results and conclusions? 

Sufficient information is factual, adequate and convincing so 
that a prudent, informed person would reach the same 
conclusions as the auditor. Reliable information is the best 
attainable information through the use of appropriate 
engagement techniques. Relevant 
information supports engagement observations and 
recommendations and is consistent with the objectives for the 
engagement. Useful information helps the organisation meet its 
goals. 
CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Working papers retained on the 
Shared Audit network drive. 

  Experienced auditors able to 
identify sufficient, reliable, 
relevant and useful information 
in order to provide assurance or 
otherwise in all reviews 
undertaken 

  CAE review of working papers 
and report would identify any 
shortcomings. 

 

2320 Analysis and Evaluation  

Have internal auditors generally based their conclusions 
and engagement results on appropriate analyses and 
evaluations? CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Auditors follow standardized 
process. Each assurance rating is 
based upon evidence considered 
as part of the quality process 

Have internal auditors generally remained alert to the possibility 
of the following when performing their individual audits, and has 
this been documented: 

  Intentional  wrong doing? 

  Errors and omissions? 

  Poor value for money? 

  Failure to comply with management policy? 

  Conflicts of interest? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Experienced auditors who would 
be able to identify and 
document within working 
papers 

  Review of working papers and 
report to ensure scope and 
objectives of the review 
acheived 

2330 Documenting Information  

Have internal auditors documented the relevant information 
required to support engagement conclusions and results? 

Are working papers sufficiently complete and detailed to enable 
another experienced internal auditor with no previous connection 
with the audit to ascertain what work was performed, to re-
perform it if necessary and to support the conclusions reached? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Working papers contain the 
relevant information (template 
documents and quality system) 

  Senior Auditor review of 
working papers and report 
would identify any shortcomings 

  Any shortcomings would be 
addressed and rectified 

 

Page 137



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Does the CAE control access to engagement records? 

Has the CAE obtained the approval of senior management and/or 
legal counsel as appropriate before releasing such records to 
external parties? 

Has the CAE developed and implemented retention requirements for 
all types of engagement records? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Records held on shared 
network drive. Only internal 
audit staff have access to this 
drive.   

  Retention requirements 
included within the Audit 
Manual  

Are the retention requirements for engagement records consistent 
with the organisation’s own guidelines as well as any relevant 
regulatory or other requirements? 

  Retention schedule 
developed in accordance 
with corporate approach 

2340 Engagement Supervision  

Are all engagements properly supervised to ensure that objectives 
are achieved, quality is assured and that staff are developed? 

Is appropriate evidence of supervision documented and retained 
for each engagement? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Ongoing discussion with 
auditor, file review and 
report clearance will identify 
any issues 

  Working papers reviewed are 
signed by the Senior Auditor 
/  CAE and comments 
recorded on the RCE to 
highlight any areas of 
concern which must be 
addressed prior to the issue 
of the draft report.  

 
 

6.5 2400 Communicating Results  

The questions in this section seek to confirm that internal 
auditors communicate the results of engagements in an 
appropriate way. 

 

2410 Criteria for Communicating  

Do the communications of engagement results include the following: 

  The engagement’s objectives? 

  The scope of the engagement? 

  Applicable conclusions? 

  Recommendations and action plans, if appropriate? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Report templates used 
   Summary of overall  findings 

included with controls 
assurance ratings 

  Management Action Plan 

Do internal auditors generally discuss the contents of the draft final 
reports with the appropriate levels of management to confirm 
factual accuracy, seek comments and confirm the agreed 
management actions? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Meeting with Lead Officer to 
discuss draft report, findings 
and agree management 
actions  

  Report issued to officers set 
out in the engagement plan 

Page 138



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

If recommendations and an action plan have been included, 
are recommendations prioritised according to risk? 

If recommendations and an action plan have been included, 
does the communication also state agreements already 
reached with management, together with appropriate 
timescales? 

If there are any areas of disagreement between the internal auditor 
and management, which cannot be resolved by discussion, are 
these recorded in the action plan and the residual risk highlighted? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Red and amber risks 
reviewed  and actions 
prioritized according to the 
level of control 

  Actions prioritized by priority 
level  with the timescale 
recorded on the action plan 

  Any alternative actions are 
recorded in the management 
action plan. 

 
 
 

Page 139



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

Subject to confidentiality requirements and other limitations on 
reporting, do communications disclose all material facts known to 
them in their audit reports which, if not disclosed, could distort their 
reports or conceal unlawful practice? 

When an opinion or conclusion is issued, are the expectations of senior 
management, the board and other stakeholders taken into account? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Material facts disclosed. 
  Control assurance ratings 

based on findings of the 
review.  If challenged, the 
auditee must provide 
evidence to support  
change 

  All Audit reports are 
issued to Directors and 
External Audit.   

Opinions should be supported by sufficient, reliable, relevant and 
useful information (in line with responses to questions for PSIAS 2300). 

Where appropriate, do engagement communications acknowledge 
satisfactory performance of the activity in question? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Each identified risk is 
awarded an assurance 
opinion on the RCE These 
support the overall 
assurance opinion 
awarded for the review 

  Positive assurance is 
included within the report 

  Working papers reviewed 
to ensure accuracy of 
opinion 

When engagement results have been released to parties outside of 
the organisation, does the communication include limitations on the 
distribution and use of the results? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Where necessary (but has 
not occurred) 

Where the CAE has been required to provide assurance to other 
partnership organisations, or arm's length bodies such as trading 
companies, have the risks of doing so been managed effectively, 
having regard to the CAE’s primary responsibility to the management 
of the organisation for which they are engaged to provide internal 
audit services? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

      √     CAE providing assurance to 
 council wholly owned 
 companies. 
      √      Reports to Board of 
 Directors and Governance 
 Committee set out 
 reporting requirements  

2420 Quality of Communications  

Are internal audit communications generally accurate, objective, clear, 
concise, constructive, complete and timely? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Report template used  
  Factual accuracy of report 

findings confirmed with 
auditee at draft report 
stage 

  Satisfaction survey issued 
after each review  

 
2421 Errors and Omissions  

If a final communication has contained a significant error or omission, 
did the CAE communicate the corrected information to all parties who 
received the original communication? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  This would be done where 
required 

  Meeting to discuss draft 
report may identify errors 
and omissions if 
applicable 

Page 140



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

2430 Use of ‘Conducted in Conformance with the International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’ 

 

Do internal auditors report that engagements are ‘conducted in 
conformance with the PSIAS’ only if the results of the QAIP support 
such a statement? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Noted on the Report 
template 

Page 141



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

2431 Engagement Disclosure of Non-conformance  

Where any non-conformance with the PSIAS has impacted on a specific 
engagement, do the communication of the results disclose the 
following: 

  The principle or rule of conduct of the Code of Ethics or Standard(s) 
with which full conformance was not achieved? 

  The reason(s) for non-conformance? 

  The impact of non-conformance on the engagement and the 
engagement results? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

Not applicable 

2440 Disseminating Results  

Has the CAE determined the circulation of audit reports within 
the organisation, bearing in mind confidentiality and legislative 
requirements? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Circulation specified on 
Audit Engagement Plan  

Has the CAE communicated engagement results to all appropriate 
parties? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  As per each individual  
Audit Engagement Plan 

Before releasing engagement results to parties outside the 
organisation, did the CAE: 

  Assess the potential risk to the organisation? 

  Consult with senior management and/or legal counsel as 
appropriate? 

  Control dissemination by restricting the use of the results? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

Not applicable 

Where any significant governance, risk management and control 
issues were identified during consulting engagements, were these 
communicated to senior management and the board? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Summary of consultancy 
work undertaken included 
within Progress Report / 
Annual Report   

  Any significant issues 
highlighted during the 
consultancy engagement 
are raised with the lead 
officer during the review 

Page 142



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
 

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

2450 Overall Opinion  

Has the CAE delivered an annual internal audit opinion? 

Does the annual internal audit opinion conclude on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control? 

Does the annual internal audit opinion take into account the 
expectations of senior management, the board and other 
stakeholders? 

Is the annual internal audit opinion supported by sufficient, reliable, 
relevant and useful information (having regard to the answers to 
questions on PSIAS 2300)? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  Annual Report  
  Results of individual 

reviews reported to senior 
managers and the 
Governance committee 
throughout the year 

  Overall annual opinion 
based on opinions of 
individual pieces of audit 
work undertaken during 
the year and knowledge of 
other sources of 
assurance both internal 
and external. 

Does the communication identify the following: 

  The scope of the opinion, including the time period to which the 
opinion relates? 

  Any scope limitations? 

  The consideration of all related projects including the reliance on 
other assurance providers? 

  The risk or control framework or other criteria used as a basis for the 
overall opinion? 

Where a qualified or unfavourable annual internal audit opinion is 
given, are the reasons for that opinion stated? 

Has the CAE delivered an annual report that can be used by the 
organisation to inform its governance statement? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFO 
 
RMING 

 
  Annual Report  
  Where appropriate 
  Other assurance providers 

are included (highlighted 
within SAS as part of AGS 
work) 

  Results of audit reviews 
undertaken during the 
year 

  Included in summary table 
of each review 

  Opinion included within 
AGS  

Does the annual report incorporate the following: 

  The annual internal audit opinion? 

  A summary of the work that supports the opinion? 

  A disclosure of any qualifications to the opinion? 

  The reasons for any qualifications to the opinion? 

  A disclosure of any impairments or restriction in scope? 

  A comparison or work actually carried out with the work planned? 

  A statement on conformance with the PSIAS? 

  The results of the QAIP? 

  Progress against any improvement plans resulting from the QAIP? 

  A summary of the performance of the internal audit activity against 
its performance measures and targets? 

  Any other issues that the CAE judges is relevant to the preparation 
of the governance statement? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

 
  Annual report includes all 

required information  
 

Page 143



                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

 
: 

77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN 
T: +44 (0)20 7543 5600   F: +44 (0)20 7543 5700 

www.cipfa.org[[p||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||
||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||
||||||||||ZPXHJ{O{{X{{XXXXX{OXPO{XXXKHJLCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC

Questions to consider Evidence / comments 

6.6 2500 Monitoring Progress  

The questions in this section seek to confirm that a system is in 
place to monitor effectiveness of audit communications results to 
management, including appropriate follow up when no action is taken 
by management. 

Has the CAE established a process to monitor and follow up 
management actions to ensure that agreed actions have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted 
the risk of not taking action? 

 

Where issues have arisen during the follow-up process (for example, 
where agreed actions have not been implemented), has the CAE 
considered revising the internal audit opinion? 

Do the results of monitoring management actions inform the risk- 
based planning of future audit work? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

√  Comprehensive 
 monitoring system 
 introduced in 21/22. 
√      Progress against 
 implementation of actions 
 reported to CGG and 
 Governance Committee 
√       Implementation of 
 actions considered as part 
 of the audit planning 
 process 

Does the internal audit activity monitor the results of consulting 
engagements as agreed with the client? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

  As per any other 
engagement 

6.7 2600 Communicating the Acceptance of Risks  

This section considers the arrangements which apply if the CAE has 
concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be 
unacceptable to the organisation. 

Situations of this kind are expected to be rare. PSIAS 2600 sets out 
communication requirements for the CAE. It is not the responsibility of 
the CAE to resolve the risk. 

 

If the CAE has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk 
that may be unacceptable to the organisation, has he or she discussed 
the matter with senior management? 

If, after discussion with senior management, the CAE continues 
to conclude that the level of risk may be unacceptable to the 
organisation, has he or she communicated the situation to the board? 

CONFORMS PARTIAL NOT CONFORMING 

Has not occurred but if it did, the 
matter would be reported to 
Senior Management 
 
This has not occurred but if it did, 
the matter would be reported to 
Governance committee 

Page 144

http://www.cipfa.org/


                      CHECKLIST FOR ASSESSING CONFORMANCE WITH THE PSIAS                                                                                        Appendix B

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC
CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC
CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC;jjjjjjj\\\\\A8RQRQA8R9 

CIPFA registered with the Charity Commissioners of England and Wales No 231060 

 
 

 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Sector Internal Audit Standards Self-Assessment Action Plan  

May 2021 / May 2022 

 

Ref Action Responsible 
Officer 

Date Status 

1 Update of Internal Audit Manual and 
associated procedures to ensure they meet 
the current operational requirements. 
 

Service Lead 
Audit and Risk / 
Senior Auditor  

September 
2021 

Complete.   Internal Audit Manual and associated 
procedures updated as part of the ISO 9001 
certification for its Quality Assurance System re-
accreditation. 
 

2 
 

Ensure that the PSIAS / LGAN self 
assessment is undertaken annually and 
reported to senior management and the 
Governance Committee. 
 

Service Lead 
Audit and Risk 

May 2022 Complete.   Self assessment undertaken on an 
annual basis and presented to Governance 
Committee in May 21 and May 22.   This will 
continue in future years with the external 
assessment due to be undertaken in early 2023. 
 

3 Ensure the results of the QAIP are reported 
annually to both senior management and the 
Governance Committee 
 

Service Lead 
Audit and Risk 

May 2022 Complete – as above 

4 
 

Undertake a review of the Council’s 
arrangements against the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Managing the risk of fraud and 
corruption and Fighting Fraud and Corruption 
Locally 
 

Service Lead 
Audit and Risk 

November 
2021. 
 
July 22 
 

In progress.  The review has been undertaken an 
action plan is being developed. 
 
Action to be carried forward.  Action plan to be 
fully developed by July 22. 
 

5 
 

Implement a system to ensure all agreed 
management actions are routinely followed 
up 
 

Service Lead 
Audit and Risk 

May 2021 Complete.   A comprehensive monitoring system 
has been implemented with Directors received 
monthly reports. 
 

P
age 147



Percentage  rates of implementation of management 
action rates as a KPI  reported to Corporate 
Governance Group  and Governance Committee. 
 

 

P
age 148



 

 
 

 

Draft Annual Governance Statement 

 

  

 

Purpose of the Report 

1.  To present the Annual Governance Statement for the period 2021/22. 
 
Recommendations to Governance Committee 

2. That the Annual Governance Statement be approved as a correct statement of the 
Council’s governance environment and be recommended to the Leader and Chief 
Executive for signature. 
 

Reasons for recommendations 

3. The Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in accordance with 
CIPFA/SOLACE Guidance and has drawn from evidence sources identified in the 
statement to reach its conclusions. 

 
Other options considered and rejected 

4. None it is a legal requirement to produce an Annual Governance Statement.  
 

Corporate priorities 

5.  The report relates to the following corporate priorities: (please bold all those applicable): 
 

 

Is this report confidential? No  
 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Governance 
and Monitoring Officer 

 

Governance Committee 

 
Tuesday, 24 May 2022 

Is this decision key? Not applicable 
 

An exemplary council Thriving communities 

A fair local economy that works for everyone Good homes, green spaces, healthy places 

Page 149

Agenda Item 9



 

Background to the report 

6. The council is required to ensure that it has in place a sound system of governance, that 
it regularly reviews the effectiveness of that system and the it continuously seeks to 
achieve best value in service delivery. As part of that, the council is required to publish 
an Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  

7. The Annual Governance Statement is developed alongside the Statement of Accounts 
but assesses the governance framework for the whole council and all of its activities. The 
form of the AGS and the approach taken to its development is based on guidance that is 
produced by CIPFA and SOLACE.  

8. The guidance from CIPFA and SOLACE sets out that councils are obliged to  
  Develop and maintain an up to date local code of governance consistent with the ‘core 
principles’ set out in the framework  
  Review their existing governance arrangements against the framework  
  Prepare a governance statement in order to report publicly on the extent to which the 
council complies with its own code on an annual basis including how it monitored the 
effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year and on any planned changes in 
the coming period.  

9. The annual governance statement is required to be signed by the most senior officer 
(normally the Chief Executive) and the most senior member (normally the Leader), but it 
is developed and owned collectively by senior officers and members.  

10. The guidance states that there should be a review undertaken by a body, such as the 
Governance Committee, that has not been involved in the production of the AGS.  

11. The statement has five sections: 
  Section one: introduction  
  Section two: the council’s responsibility in producing an annual governance statement 
and the purpose of the annual governance statement  
  Section three: the governance framework, and how the council complies with its local 
code  
  Section four: how the council reviews the effectiveness of the governance framework  
  Section five: reflects back and updates on the progress improvements identified in the 
previous AGS and improvements recommended to be taken in the coming period. 
 

12. The full AGS attached at appendix A.  
13. The AGS reflects that the Local Code of Corporate Governance was refreshed in March 

this year.  

Climate change and air quality  
 
12. The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability 

targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place. 
 

Equality and diversity 

13. There are no implications under this head. 

Risk 

14. The AGS is a document that assesses the risk of failings of the Council’s governance 
environment and recommends improvements to mitigate these risks. 

 

Page 150

Agenda Item 9



 

Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer 

15. No comments. 
 

Comments of the Monitoring Officer 

16. Contained in the body of the report.  
 

There are no background papers to this report 

Appendices  
Appendix A – Draft Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 
 

Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

Chris Moister (Director of 
Governance) 

chris.moister@southribble.gov.uk  13 May 
2022 

Page 151

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Annual Governance Statement 
2021/22 

 
 
 
  

P
age 153



2 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
The Annual Governance Statement is a point in time assessment of the council’s governance framework. It considers information assembled over the 
course of the previous 12 months to make an evidence-based assessment of the systems, processes, culture and values that feed into our internal 
control environment and our compliance with them. This document draws the evidence together and provides a valued judgement of our governance 
environment.   
 
The AGS provides an overview of the council’s key governance systems and explains how they are tested and the assurance that can be relied upon 
to show that these systems and processes operating effectively.  The Statement comprises an overview of the key elements of its governance framework 
and what evidence has been received in order to determine the effectiveness of the arrangements.  In addition, the Statement contains an update on 
the areas for improvement identified last year, together with proposed areas for improvement for the coming year. 
 
 
 
  

P
age 154



3 

 
2. What is Corporate Governance 

 
South Ribble Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law, to the highest standards and that 
there is a sound system of governance (incorporating the system of internal control). Public money must be protected and properly accounted for. We 
also have a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to continually review and improve the way we work, while at the same time offering value for 
money and delivering an efficient and effective service.   
 
To meet this responsibility, we have put in place arrangements for overseeing what we do (this is what we mean by governance). These arrangements 
are intended to make sure we do the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a fair, open, honest and accountable way. 
 
Our Governance Framework is based on the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework1. It promotes and demonstrates our commitment to the principles of good 
governance and incorporates the council’s values that emphasise how we do things at South Ribble Borough Council. It is important to note that a 
robust governance framework only has value if it is complied with and contains sufficient controls to ensure this.  
 
The adopted Local Code of Corporate Governance incorporates and demonstrates how the 7 principles detailed by the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, 
and set out below, are complied with.  
 
Good governance means:-  

  behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law.  
  ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
  defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 
  determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 
  developing the council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it  
  managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management  
  implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 

Our Local Code was reviewed and updated this year and approved by Governance Committee on 29 March 2022 and can be accessed through this 
hyperlink here.  
 
 

 

 
1 The CIPFA / SOLACE (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy / Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers) framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government”. 

P
age 155



4 

3. The Council’s Governance Framework  

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which we direct and control our activities including those by which 
we account to, engage with and lead the community.  It enables us to monitor how we are achieving our long-term aims and to demonstrate where this 
has led to improved services that are delivering value for money. The council has responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot remove all risk of 
failing to achieve our priorities and aims, so it can only offer reasonable protection. It is based on an ongoing process that is designed to:  
 

  Identify and prioritise the risks that could prevent us achieving our aims and objectives 
  Assess the likelihood and impact of the risk occurring  
  Manage the risks efficiently, effectively and economically.  

 
The local code should enable members to satisfy themselves that council objectives are being met lawfully, in accordance with the corporate strategy, 
medium term financial strategy and in a way that demonstrates value for money. The framework is the basis for the decision making structures and 
compliance with it enables members to have sufficient information to test any proposals and / or delivery and to make a reasonable, evidence based 
decision. 
 
There has been evidence of improvement in the governance environment with external audit recognising that significant works have been undertaken 
to develop and implement robust policies and processes to support it. This has led to a noticeable improvement in the outcomes of internal audit reviews 
and external audit removing the statutory recommendation from the statement of accounts for the year 2020/21 (recently completed) and identifying 
only areas for improvement which is a huge step forward for the Council. It is important that the Council acknowledge that the work completed is only 
the beginning and we must continue to commit to improvement. We must demonstrate this commitment through honest self-assessment and regularly 
reviewing how we can be better, using the governance framework to self-identify issues and improvements and take steps to implement them quickly. 

 
Values of good governance 
 
The Council also promotes and demonstrates the values of good governance by upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour.  The following 
strong arrangements are in place to ensure that appropriate standards of behaviour are maintained: 
 
Codes of Conduct (Members and Officers)  
Member Officer Protocol 
Suite of HR policies  
Suite of Counter Fraud Policies 
 

P
age 156



5 

It is appropriate to spend a little time on the roll out of the new HR Policies and the HR hub. The extension of shared services was an opportune time 
to review HR policies with a view to bringing consistency across staff within shared services and the 2 employing councils. This review has led to the 
development not only of the new suite of policies but an online HR Hub where they can be accessed and also an organisational development area to 
act as a training hub for online training and personal development area where 121’s, and personal development can be recorded and managed 
centrally. This is an important development for the council as it will provide evidence of training completed, development of staff and the passing of 
information, which are all elements of a strong governance environment. 
 
In addition, the council have made the following improvements and implemented the following actions: 
 

  strengthening the business planning process,  
  approval of the Contract and Partnership Framework and monitoring arrangements,  
  the introduction of the Project Management Framework  
  the new performance management system,  
  the introduction of the performance and project network 
  risk management training 
  report writing training. 

demonstrating a continuing commitment to improvement and a recognition of the need to embed the works undertaken.  
 
Impact of Covid on the Council’s governance arrangements 
 
The impact of the pandemic had a lingering effect on the business of the Council. No new controls were introduced in the last 12 months but the 
existing ones had become embedded ways of working.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 157



6 

 
4. How we review the effectiveness of the Governance Framework 
 
This section identifies the structures, committees and officer roles which serve to review the appropriateness of the governance arrangements and their 
application. 
 
The Council has a responsibility to keep the effectiveness of its governance arrangements under review to ensure continuous improvement.  This review 
is informed by the work of the Governance Committee supported by management, internal and external auditors and other review agencies.   
 
Governance Committee - The Governance Committee provides member oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s business controls. The Governance 
committee undertakes all of the core functions of an audit committee as identified in the relevant CIPFA guidance.  An assessment has been undertaken 
during 2020/21 and this confirmed that the Committee are operating in line with CIPFA’s Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities 
and Police 2018.   In addition, the Committee’s skills and knowledge have been assessed and training will be arranged to meet any training needs 
identified. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Shared Services Joint Committee - The Joint Committee monitors service performance of the shared services partnership between South Ribble 
Borough and Chorley Borough Councils, and is a good example of our effective governance of partnerships.  
 
Standards Committee - the committee’s role is to promote high ethical standards. Standards Committee reports to full Council on an annual basis on 
the work that it carried out. There have been no hearings this year. 
 
Scrutiny Committee   

The Scrutiny Committee have continued to play an active role in the business of the Council, holding the Executive to account and assisting in the 
development of Policy and feeding into the budget cycle. It was Chaired by a councillor who is not part of the administration. 

The Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel meets to challenge and comment on the quarterly performance and budget monitoring reports prior to 
consideration by Cabinet as part of our new rigorous Performance Management Framework.   

The Scrutiny Chair attends the Lancashire County Council Health Scrutiny Committee and reports back to each meeting.  The Council plays a leading 
role in the North West Strategic Scrutiny Network which shares learning and best practice amongst Members.  

Member Training 

The Council holds the North West Employers Member Development Charter and has a cross-party Member Development Steering Group that takes 
an overview of Member training and development.  A Member Personal Development Planning is now embedded with member PDP’s being 
completed.   

P
age 158



7 

During the year all Member training was provided a number of different topics and  Member briefings held to support member understanding of 
council business. 

Members have also attended a number of external training courses and conferences via the LGA and other providers. 

Management Team / Leadership Team   

Further steps have been taken in the last 12 months to strengthen the leadership team. All director posts are now shared and a new Director of 
Change and Delivery role has been appointed to. This post is to support the continued transformation of the council and will play a key role in 
ensuring the embedding of new policies, ways of working and a culture of continuous improvement. 

Section 151 Officer / Director of Finance  
 
The Director of Finance/ Section 151 Officer post was recruited to on a permanent basis twelve months ago and is a member of the Senior Management 
Team.   
 
Statutory Regulation / Monitoring Officer 
 
This role is fulfilled by the Director of Governance who is also a member of the Senior Management Team. 
 

Corporate Governance Group / Officer arrangements 
 
In developing this Annual Governance Statement, the council’s senior officers have worked collectively to understand and assess the effectiveness of 
the implementation of the council’s governance framework. This work has been overseen by a Corporate Governance Group comprising: 

  Chief Executive 
  Deputy Chief Executive 
  Director of Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
  Director of Finance S151 Officer 
  Director Change and Delivery 
  Shared Service Lead Audit and Risk  

 

P
age 159



8 

The Corporate Governance Group (CGG) have worked with the council’s Senior Management Team who have individually produced and collectively 
reviewed service assurance statements which assess compliance with and understanding of the council’s governance framework. This assessment 
has supported the production of this document. 
 
It is also important to note the ongoing role that a council’s senior officers have in ensuring that good governance is enacted in the working of the 
organisation.  
 
A terms of reference for the CGG have been developed which will further enhance the governance monitoring and reporting arrangements. 
 
Programme Board  
 
A corporate programme board has been established and meets quarterly to review and monitor the performance of the Corporate Strategy projects and 
performance measures ahead of reporting to Cabinet.  The board is made up of the Senior Management Team as those accountable for overall 
programme delivery and ensuring compliance with the Performance Management Framework.  The board receive an update report highlighting issues, 
concerns and risks by exception.  The board will discuss issues and identify solutions before cascading directions back to project managers and teams.    
 
Internal Audit and the Head of Audit Opinion 
 
Internal Audit is responsible for providing assurance on the quality and effectiveness of the system of governance and internal control. A risk based 
Internal Audit Plan is produced. The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report of each audit to be submitted to the relevant service. This 
report includes recommendations for improvements that are included within a Management Action Plan and require agreement or rejection by service 
managers.  
 
The Internal Audit Annual Report contains a statement/ judgement on overall levels of internal control (a view based on the relative significance of the 
systems reviewed during the year, in the context of the totality of the control environment).  
 
The Annual Internal Audit report contains the following opinion from the Head of Internal Audit: 
 
Based on the work undertaken and evidence available to Internal Audit including other sources of assurance, it is considered that the overall adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk management and control processes are adequate.  
 
The Council has made significant progress to improve the overall governance and risk management arrangements. The past 12-18 months have seen 
the introduction of a range of corporate processes to provide a robust governance framework.   The challenge now for the Council is to ensure that the 
momentum of continuous improvement does not wane and that the governance framework in place becomes fully embedded in all Council activities. 

P
age 160



9 

 
 
 
 
GDPR Leadership Group / Information Governance 
 
The Leadership GDPR Group has overseen the implementation and full GDPR compliance. Various initiatives have been initiated via the GDPR 
Officers Group to assess ongoing compliance. This work indicates good staff awareness and secure methods of working whilst working from home.  
The former Data Protection Officer has obtained employment with another council and this role is now fulfilled by the Director of Governance. The 
Senior Information Risk Owner is the Director (Customer and Digital).   
 
Organisational Development 
 
An Organisational Development Strategy has been adopted with key objectives to: support the needs of the workforce; to facilitate staff engagement 
through a variety of mechanisms; to demonstrate investment in staff and their personal development; to underpin consistent management and to 
develop the leadership team. The Interventions identified are starting to embed with the first cohort having completed the Flair programme and 
providing positive feedback. The Passport to People Management programme has commenced and mentoring opportunities are provided to junior 
managers in the organisation to aid their development. 
 
The HR Hub has brought together in one place both the OD strategy and wider eLearning opportunities making it easier to manage and identify gaps 
in staff’s knowledge and / or experience but also a framework to address them. 
 
Corporate Complaints / Local Ombudsman  
 
The number of customer complaints processed as stage one complaints have again increased year on year, 169 in 2020/21 to 199. This is perhaps 
not unexpected as the expectations of residents following covid returned to normality. The percentage of complaints upheld increased from 15% to 
25% but this remained below pre-pandemic levels.  
 
The Council are aware of 5 complaints which were made to the Local Government Ombudsman in the year 2021/22. None of the complaints were 
upheld. There was one LGO investigation from a previous year received in this period which required an apology from the Council. 
 
This is suggestive of an improvement of levels of service and compliance with council processes and the Council can take some assurance from the 
independent testing of the Council by the Local Government Ombudsman. 
 
 
 

P
age 161



10 

 
 
External Audit 
 
The Council receive regular reports on elements of its internal control environment, including performance management, risk management, financial 
management and governance. 
 
The most recent review undertaken (which is for the period 2020/21) has acknowledged significant improvement in the Councils governance 
environment and has removed the statutory recommendation, identifying only improvements that should be made. This is an endorsement of the work 
the council have done in the last 2 years to address the issues identified in previous years. 
 
Peer Challenge 
 
Recognising the importance of a strong governance environment and the benefit of an external review, the Council invited the Local Government 
Association to undertake a peer review with one of the focus areas specifically relating to organisational leadership and governance. 
 
The report, which was published on the Councils website, recognised the significant improvements at the Council and made the following 
recommendations relevant to the governance focus:- 
 
Recommendation One: Embed a culture of good governance: SRBC need to build on their momentum and progress regarding governance. This 
includes ensuring that their existing reforms have embedded within the organisation’s processes, practice, and culture, as well as considering further 
areas that may not currently be within the scope of the Council’s existing action plan. 
 
Recommendation Eight: Political engagement in a balanced authority: The finely balanced politics of SRBC places further emphasis on the need for 
effective cross-party working relations. Given the challenges ahead it is important to ensure, where possible, a strong cross-party consensus on many 
of the priority and long-term issues that are facing the borough. This should include consideration of the contribution that Scrutiny can make to 
provide constructive challenge on issues and building on the sharing of information across political groups that has been developed during the COVID 
pandemic.  
 
During the follow up visit by the Peer Group they expressed further satisfaction with the progress of the Council on these issues. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 162



11 

5. Governance Environment: Areas to Strengthen 
 
The following table relates to the action plan from the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement. The improvements are specific and the table indicates 
whether the action is completed or outstanding. It will be noted that only one action is being carried forward to next year with all other actions being 
complete or partially complete. 
 
Themes  Improvement Required Complete/ 

Outstanding 
    

 
Recruitment/Induction  To ensure all new employees receive a comprehensive induction 

covering all core areas, the corporate induction will be updated to 
include welcome videos from the senior management, introduction to 
the borough and mandatory training covering core policies and health 
and safety.  
Continued focus on HR System transformation is required to ensure 
a robust administrative process is operational and suitable controls 
are in place for all aspects of Human Resources and Organisational 
Development 

Complete 

    

P
age 163



12 

Themes  Improvement Required Complete/ 
Outstanding 

    
Governance & 
Management 

 Management Development Programme has been designed to 
establish a baseline level of management competency as well as 
providing ongoing support to maintain performance.  The aim is to 
commence delivery with cohorts of managers from September 2021 
through a range of methods including e-learning, which will also form 
part of the induction process for future managers. 
 
Introduce a standardised DMT agenda with agreed standing items to 
ensure a consistent approach is adopted across the Council. This will 
incorporate items of Corporate significance identified by the 
Communications team within their forward plan.  

Complete 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Complete 
 
 
 
 
 

Fraud and Corruption  Fraud awareness training to be delivered to all relevant officers using 
e-learning modules  
Fraud reports to be presented to Governance Committee 
Fraud risk register to be compiled and monitored on a regular basis 
  

Complete 
 
Outstanding 
Complete 

Corporate Information 
Source for Officers 
(Connect) 

 To improve the user experience for employees and ensure essential 
information is easy to access. The following improvements to 
Connect should be considered: 
• Defined area on Connect for all core policies. 
 
• Service areas to review information they have published on 
Connect and to remove outdated material. 
• Create a manager zone within Connect to ensure all essential 
guidance and resources for managerial responsibilities are easily 
sourced. 
  

 
 
 
Partially 
complete 
Complete 
 
Complete 

Risk Management  Ensure risk management is embedded throughout the organisation 
and within all Council activities. 
  

Ongoing 

P
age 164



13 

Themes  Improvement Required Complete/ 
Outstanding 

Budget Monitoring  To re-establish budget monitoring reports to aid budget holders after 
a further analysis of the report content is undertaken. Reports will be 
tailored to ensure that they meet the needs of the service area. 
  

Complete 

    
GDPR   The GDPR Leadership Group should undertake a full review to 

ensure that the register is up to date with data responsibilities 
correctly defined and continue to monitor and expedite the 
outstanding data disposal actions to ensure they are implemented 
imminently. 
 
  

Complete 

Equality   The equality scheme should be revised and refreshed including 
revised equality objectives to ensure that it is up to date and fit for 
purpose. 
 
  

Substantially 
Complete 

Key Corporate 
Policies 

 Devise and implement a corporate process to ensure all staff revisit 
key policies so a good level of awareness is maintained across the 
organisation. 
  

Carried 
forward 

Value for Money  Adopt an organisation wide Transformation Strategy & Programme 
incorporating a value for money elements to deliver efficient services 
through service reviews and shared services. 
  

Complete 

Inventories  Directors to ensure that inventories are compiled and maintained in 
accordance with the Councils guidance notes for service unit fixed 
assets registers. 
  

Substantially 
Complete 

Transparency Act  Publish up to date information and include all mandatory criteria. Complete 

 
 

P
age 165

file://alpha/assurance$/audit/1.Internal%20Audit%20Work/Audit%20Work%2021-22/2.SRBC/AGS/Transparency%20Code/SRBC%20Transparency%20Code%20Assessment%202020-21.docx


14 

 
Following the assessment of our governance environment, no significant failings were identified by the Corporate Governance Group, although as 
the council have committed to continuous improvement the group have identified areas where it could be enhanced. Although, as stated, last years 
actions are not being rolled forward into this years’ plan, some are being adapted into new actions to reflect in year changes. The table will form the 
basis for a more detailed action plan for delivery of the improvements. It is intended to report progress against the plan to Governance Committee 
mid year and year end. 

 
Theme Areas for improvement Suggested improvement 

Failure to identify, monitor and report of fraud 
risks facing the Authority 
 
 

To develop the Council’s approach to fraud following 
the assessment of the Council’s arrangements 
against Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2020-
2025 
 

Failure to have a system in place to ensure key 
corporate policies are regularly reviewed, 
version controlled and remain up to date and 
accurate. 

Devise and implement a corporate process to ensure 
all staff revisit key policies so a good level of 
awareness is maintained across the organisation 
 

Contract Management System Directors to ensure all contracts are entered onto the 
corporate CMS in a timely fashion including current 
“live” contracts. 
 

Risk Management A range of reports to be developed to allow Directors 
to challenge data held with GRACE including 
partnership, project and operational risks. 
 

Process/ 
System 

Cyber Security, use of ICT equipment and 
system access 

Once approved, awareness of the contents of the 
Shared Information Security Framework should be 
raised using all communication methods.  
 
A programme of Cyber security training sessions 
should be developed and delivered to highlight to all 
officers and members the risks faced by the council.  
 
Align where appropriate all IT forms and processes 
across the shared council environment. 

P
age 166



15 

Equality Once approved, the refreshed equality framework 
should be rolled out including training and updating of 
EIAs on website 
 

Staff 
development 

Organisational Development 
 
 
 
 
OD Strategy to be developed (May 22) 
Mandatory training modules to be completed in 
full 

OD to ensure monitoring reports are issued to 
Directors on a regular basis. This is to include 
monitoring of compliance with new HR policies and 
processes. 
 
All Directors to ensure all mandatory training is 
completed within the agreed timescales. 
 
 
 

Corporate Constitution 
 

 

Constitution to be reviewed and updated where 
applicable. 
 
 

 Business continuity To put forward a business case for the future 
management of business continuity to standardize 
and align process across the two authorities. 
 
To establish a forward plan of testing to ensure plans 
are robust, encompass all council activity and are fit 
for purpose. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 167



16 

 
6. Conclusion 
 
The council is fully committed to ensuring that its governance arrangements are and continue to be as robust as possible. As part of that process the 
council will monitor implementation of all actions set out in our Action Plan.  
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………    ………………………………………. 
 
Leader of the Council      Chief Executive 
 
 
 
Date: ……………….………….  
 
 
On behalf of the Members and Senior Officers of South Ribble Borough Council.  

P
age 168



17 

GLOSSARY  
 

Annual Audit Letter An External Audit report presented to Council and containing the 
findings of the Audit Commission’s work.  It is a requirement of the 
Code of Practice for Auditors. 
 

Assurance      An evaluated opinion based on evidence and gained from review. 
 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy  
 

Control Environment 
System of Internal 
Control 
 

Comprises the organisation’s policies, procedures and operations in 
place to : 
Establish and monitor the achievement of the organisation’s 
priorities; Identify, assess and manage the risks to achieving the 
organisation’s objectives; Facilitate policy and decision making; 
Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources; 
Ensure compliance with policies, legislation and regulations; 
Safeguard the organisation’s assets; Ensure the integrity and 
reliability of information, accounts and data. 
 

Corporate Governance             Corporate governance is the system by which local authorities direct 
and control their functions and relate to their communities. 

 
Corporate Governance 
Group 

 In 2017 this involved the following officers: Chief Executive; Section 
151 Officer; Monitoring Officer; Head of Shared Assurance; 
Corporate Governance Manager; Corporate Improvement Manager. 

  
SOLACE Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 

 
 
 

 
 

                                           
 

P
age 169



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Tuesday, 24th May, 2022, 6.00 pm
	Shield Room, Civic Centre, West Paddock, Leyland, PR25 1DH
	Agenda


	3 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 29 March 2022 of Governance Committee
	4 Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
	5 External Audit Plan 2021/22
	6 Management responses to External Audit Planning Enquiries 2021/22
	Management response to External Audit Planning Enquiries
	Purpose of the Report
	Recommendations to Governance Committee
	Reasons for recommendations
	Other options considered and rejected
	Corporate priorities
	Background to the report
	Equality and diversity
	Risk
	Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
	Comments of the Monitoring Officer
	Appendices

	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	7 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2021-2022
	Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2021-2022
	Purpose of the Report
	Recommendations to Governance Committee
	Reasons for recommendations
	Other options considered and rejected
	Corporate priorities
	Background to the report
	Climate change and air quality
	Equality and diversity
	Risk
	12.	The primary role of the Audit and Risk Service is to provide assurance or otherwise that the council is effectively managing its risk and to provide support to all Directorates in relation to risk and control.
	Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
	Comments of the Monitoring Officer
	Appendices

	Appendix A - Internal Audit Annual Report and opinion 2021-2022
	Appendix B - Summary of Work 2021.22
	Appendix C - Internal Audit Performance Indicators

	8 Review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit 2022
	Review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit 2022
	Purpose of the Report
	Recommendations to Governance Committee
	Reasons for recommendations
	Corporate priorities
	Background to the report
	Climate change and air quality
	Equality and diversity
	Risk
	14.	Failure to undertake the annual self-assessment against the PSAIS and LGAN will leave the Council unable to demonstrate that the Internal Audit Service conforms  with the expected Standards.
	Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
	Comments of the Monitoring Officer
	Appendices

	Appendix A - Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme
	INTRODUCTION
	Internal Assessments:
	External Assessments
	Approach
	Scope of the Assessment


	Appendix B - Self Assessment
	Appendix C - Action Plan

	9 Draft Annual Governance Statement
	Draft Annual Governance Statement
	Purpose of the Report
	Recommendations to Governance Committee
	Reasons for recommendations
	Other options considered and rejected
	Corporate priorities
	Background to the report
	Climate change and air quality
	Equality and diversity
	Risk
	14.	The AGS is a document that assesses the risk of failings of the Council’s governance environment and recommends improvements to mitigate these risks.
	Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
	Comments of the Monitoring Officer
	Appendices

	Appendix 1 for Draft Annual Governance Statement
	Annual Governance Statement 2021/22





